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independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of MaZeikiy Nafta AB
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MaZeikiy Nafta AB and its
subsidiaries {the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2006 and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consclidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and International Financiai Reporting Standards as issued by the 1ASB. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financiai statements in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Cpinion

in October 2005, the Group acquired subsidiary MaZeikiy Eiektring AB. Through this business combination
the Group acquired allowances to emit 2,651,020 tons of carbon dioxide in 2005 — 20C7. These allowances
and the related iiabilities for the actual emissions made untii the date of acquisition have not been
recognised in the balance sheet of the Group. In accordance with International Financiai Reporting Standard
No. 3 “Business Combinations” the acguirer shall, at the acquisifion date, recognise the acquiree's
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at their fair values at that date. In our opinion, the
Group should have recognised the above allowances and related liabilities at the date of acquisition of the
subsidiary and subsequently shouid have recognised liabilities and related expenses for the actual
emissions of carbon dioxide made between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2008. In 20086,
Mazeikiy Elektrine AB sold allowances to emit 1,570,000 tons of carbon dioxide. On disposal the Group
should have derecognised the ¢arrying amount of emission affowances. in December 2008 the Group
acquired the remaining shares of MaZeikiy ECiekiriné AB from minority shareholders. The resulting goodwill
should have been czlculated based on the carrying values of net assets of subsidiary including the above
emission allowances and related iiabilities. Furthermore, the Group should have tested the recognised
ailowances for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount
may not be recoverabie, and recognised an impairment loss, if any.

As a result, the Group's total assets in the balance sheet as of 31 December 2006 should be increased by
USD 1,844 thousand or LTL 4,852 thousand (31 December 2005:; fotal assets and minority interest
increased by USD 64,324 thousand or LTL 187,196 thousand and USD 9,389 thousand or LTL 27,323
thousand respectively), retained earnings increased by USD 1,844 thousand or LTL 4,852 thousand (31
December 2005; USD 55,109 thousand or LTL 159,873 thousand), whilst profit for the year then ended
should be decreased by USD 67,250 thousand or LTL 180,853 thousand (31 December 2005: increased by
USD 54,859 thousand or LTL 159,148 thousand) and its part attributable to minority interest decreased by
UsSD 8,605 thousand or LTL 25,832 thousand (31 December 2005 USD 250 thousand or LTL 728
thousand). In addition, in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 presented in USD
the cumulative transiation adjustment shouid be decreased by USD 174 thousand,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinicn, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as of 31 December 2008, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

in our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Optnion paragraph,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as of 31 December 2006, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASE.

Report on Other Legai and Reguiatery Requirements

Furthermore, we have read the Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2006 set out on pages
57-87 and have not noted any material inconsistencies between the financial infarmation included in it and
the audited consclidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2006.

On behalf of PricewaterhouseCcopers UAB

Christopher C. Butier Ona Armaliene
Parnner Auditer's Certificate No.000008
Vilnius, Republic of Lithuania

17 April 2007




MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2606

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL'000 unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated balance sheet

Note  As at 31 December 2006 As at 31 December 2005
ASSETS USsD LTL USD LTL
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 573,743 1,509,174 509,016 1,481,336
Intangibie assets 3 7.476 19,665 3,916 11,396
Goodwill 9 4,745 12,481 1,842 5,361
Investments in associates 10 1,463 3,848 1,262 3,672
Deferred income tax assets 20 36,100 94,957 20,891 60,798
Available-for-sale financial assets - - 1 3
MNon-current receivables and prepayments i1 28,678 75,435 27,997 81,478
632,205 1,715,560 564,925 1,644,044
Current assets '
Inventories 12 348,418 916,479 257,119 748,268
Trade and other recetvables 1 93,876 246,932 144,607 420,836
Prepaid current income tax 53,630 141,068 165 480
Cash and cash equivalents 14 436,382 1,147,859 637,813 1,856,164
932,306 2,452,338 1,039,704 3,025,748
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 292 768 953 2,773
932.598 2.453.106 1,040,657 3,008 521
Total assets 1,584,803 4,168,660 1,605,582 4,672,565
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 15 181,886 708,821 181,366 707,454
Share premium 77,507 295,548 72,752 283,040
Reserves i6 18,883 50,799 13,603 36,526
Cumulative transiation adjustment 4,498 (229,580) 1,457 €30,716)
Retained earnings 465,492 1,142,651 404,069 963,006
748,266 1,968,239 673,247 1,859,310
Minority interest 265 697 336 2,433
Total equity 748,531 1,968,936 674,083 1,961,743
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19 450,202 1,184,211 454,076 1,321,452
Other non-current liabilities 17 8,839 23,250 8,506 24,754
Provisions for Habilities and charges 21 2,455 6,458 11,322 32,949
461,496 1,213,919 473,904 1,379,153
Current liabhilities
Trade and other payables 18 359,881 946,631 395,457 1,150,833
Current income tax liabilities 1,605 4,222 36,879 107,325
Borrowings 19 6,894 18,134 9,812 28,555
Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 6,396 16,824 15,447 44,954
374,776 585,811 457,595 1,331,667
Total liabilities 836,272 2,199,730 931,499 2,710,822
Total equity and liabilities 1,584,803 4,168,666 1,605,582 4,672,565

The General Director and the Chief Financial Officer approved the consolidated financial statements on pages 5 to 56 on 22

March 2007. é L\.
Paul Nelson English P"’)Jlsw ueﬁfss Vita Petrosiené w
General Director Chief Financial Officer . c}\/

The notes on pages 10 to 56 are an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements.




MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

{all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL 000 unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated income statement

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling-and marketing costs
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity kolders of the Company
Minority interest

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company during the year
(expressed in USD or LTL per share)

~ basic / diluted

Note

6
22

24
25
10

26

27

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
USD LTL UsD LTL
4,300,090 11,864,955 4,005,521 11,155,771
(3,977,032) (10,960,665 _ (3,336,777)__(9,302,596)
323,058 904,290 668,744 1,853,175
14,683 39,469 991 2,739
(187013)  (516,210) (206,075) (572,270
(89,423) (245307 (83,352)  (232,894)
61,305 182,242 380,308 1,050,750
39,339 107,655 14,854 41,633
(31,555) (86,772) (31,840) (88,257)
65 179 103 286
69,154 203,304 363,425 1,004,412
(1,293) (6,229) (44,702)  (118,698)
67,861 197,075 318,723 885,714
63,996 192,058 319,478 887,764
1,865 5,017 (755) (2,050)
67,861 197,075 318,723 885,714
0.093 0.271 0.452 1.255

The notes on pages 10 to 56 are an. integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL’000 unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity {(in USD’000)

Balance at 1 January 2005
Currency translation differences
recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income for
20605

Minority interest arising on
business combinations
Transfer to legal reserve

Dividend relating to 2004
Other
Balance at 31 December 2005

Balance at 1 January 2006
Currency translation differences
recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income for
2006

Transfer to legal reserve

Issue of share capitai in exchange
for minority interest in subsidiary
Transfer of cumulative
translation adjustment on merged
subsidiary

Balance at 31 December 2006

Note Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company
Statuto-
ry reva- Cumaulative

Share Share luation  Legal t{ransiation Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve adjustments earnings Total interest equity
181,366 72,752 109 - 4344 190,756 449,327 686 450,013
- . - - {2,887 - {2,887 275 (2,608)
- - - - - 319,478 319478 (755 318,723
- - - - (2,887). 319,478 316,391  (476) 316,115
32 - - - - - - - 794 794
16 - - - 13,494 - (13,454) - - -
28 - - - - - (92,671 (92,671) - (92,671
o - - - - - - (168) {168)
181,366 72,752 109 13,494 1,457 404,069 673,247 836 674,083
181,366 72,752 109 13,494 1,457 404,069 673,247 836 674,083
- - - - 3,748 - 3,748 132 3,880
- - - - - 6599 65996 1,865 67.861
- - - - 3,748 65,996 69,744 1,997 71,741
16 - - - 5,280 - (5,280) - - -
32 520 4,755 . ; - . 5275 (2,568 2,707
- - ~ - (707 707 - - -
181,886 77,507 105 18,774 4498 465,492 748,266 748,531

The notes on pages 10 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

263




MAZEIKYU NAFTA AB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TBE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2606

{all tabular amounts are in USD'000 and LTL 000 unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity (in LT'L’OO{})

Balance at 1 January 2008

Currency translation differences
recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for

2005

Minority interest arising on
business combinations
Transfer to logal reserve

Dividend relating to 2004

Other

Balance at 31 December 2605

Balance at I January 2006
Currency translation differences
recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for

2006

Transfer to legal reserve

Issue of share capital in exchange
for minority interest in subsidiary 32
Transfer of cumulative

translation adjustment on merged

subsidiary

Balance at 31 December 2006

Note  (Capital and reserves attributable to equity hoiders of the Company
Statuto- Cumulative
Fy reva- translation

Share Share luation FEegal adjust- Retained Minority Total
capital premium  reserve reserve ments earnings. ° Total interest equity
707,454 283,040 437 - (211,052) 358,940 1,138,819 1,739 1,140,538
- - - - 180,336 - 180,336 04 181,240
- - - - - 887764 887764 (2,050) 885,714
- - - - 180,336 887,764 1,068,100 (1,140) 1,066,954
32 - - - - - - - 2,282 2,282
16 - - - 36,089 - (36,089} - - -
28 - - - - - (247,6093{247,609) - {247,609
- - - - - - - (442) (4423
707,454 283,040 437 36,089 (30,716} 963,006 1,959.310 2,433 1,961,743
707,454 283,040 437 36,089  (30,716) 963,006 1,959,310 2,433 1,961,743
- - - - (197,004) - (197,0043 2 {197,002)
- - - - - 192,058 192058 5017 197075
- - - - (197,004) 192,058 (4,946} 5,019 73
16 - - - 14273 - (14273) - ) -
1,367 12,508 - - - - 13,875 (6,755) 7,120
- - - - (1,860) 1,860 - - -
708,821 295,548 437 50,362 (229,580) 1,142 651 1,968,239 697 1,968,936

The notes on pages 10 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL 000 uniess otherwise stated)

Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December

2006 2005

Note usn LTL UsSDh LTL
Cash flows from operating activities :
Cash generated from operations 29 38,349 1,236 495,986 1,538,651
Interest paid (31,442) {86,389) (28,356) {78,500)
Income tax paid {101,695) (278,566) (59,219 (170,657)
Net cash generated from operating activities _{(94,788) (363,719) 408,411 1,290,094
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (126,119) (339,287) {59,044) (164,224)
Change in cash restricted for investing activities ' - - 11,205 28,399
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,066 5,743 514 1,414
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets classified as
held for sale 1,270 3,606 210 387
Purchases of intangible assets (1,249 (2,478) (905) (2,552)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets - - i9 48
Interest received 26,226 71,952 14,854 41,723
Acquisition of subsidiary, nst of cash acquired 32 - - (5,733} {16,468}
Acquisition of shares in subsidiary from minority 32 - - (208) (554)
Net cash used in investing activities (97,806) {260,474) (39,088) (111,625)
Cash flows from financing activities '
Proceeds from borrowings 1,962 5,341 726 2,113
Repayments of borrowings {9,508) {26,242} (15,387 (42,624)

Finance lease principal payments 27mh (751) (331) V)]
Dividends paid to the Company’s sharsholders - - (92,6653 {247,592}
Coniribution of minority shareholders to the share

capital of subsidiary - - 3 7
Net cash used in financing activities (7,817 (21,652) (107,654) (289.013)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and bank

overdrafts (200411 (645,845) 261,669 889,456
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at

beginning of period 14 637,813 1,856,164 382,434 969,282
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents : : :

and bank overdrafts ‘ (i,721) (64,304) (6,290) (2,574)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at

end of period 14 435,681 1,146,015 637,813 1,836,164

The notes on pages 10 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL’000 unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. General information

Mazeikiy Nafta AB (hereinafter “the Company™) was originally established in 1980 to refine crude oil and market refined
oil products. In 1995, the Company was reorganised into a public company following a partial privatisation by the
Company’s employees. In 1998, the Company merged with Biitinges Nafta AB, an oil terminal operator, and Naftotiekis
- AB, a pipeline operator, In 2006, the Company merged with Mazeikiy Elekiriné AB, manufacturer of electricity.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Lithuania. The address of its registered office is
Tuodeikiai, LT-89467 MazZeikiy raj., Lithuania. :

The Company has its primary listing on the Vilnius Stock Exchange (.Lithuania).

On 15 December 2006, Yukos International UK B.V. (part of the Yukos Group) and the Government of the Republic of
Lithuania (hereinafter “the Government”) sold 53.7 percent and 30.66 percent, respectively, of the Company’s shares to
Polski Koncern Naftowy Orlen S.A. (Poland) (hereinafter “PKN ORLEN"). As at 31 December 2006 the Company’s two
_primary shareholders were PKIN ORLEN with 84,2 percent and the Government with 9.98 percent of shares (2005: Yukos
International UK B.V. with 53.7 percent and the Government with 40.7 percent of shares). The remaining shares are widely
heid.

As at 31 December 2006 Polski Koncern Naftowy Orlen S.A. was the ultimate parent entity of the Group (as defined
below) and the Polish State Treasury was the ultimate controiling party of the Group.

The consolidated group
The consolidated group (hereinafier “the Group”) consists of the Company and its seven subsidiaries (2005 nine

subsidiaries). The Group has one associate accounted for using the equity method. The subsidiaries and associate included
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are listed below:

Year of | Group’s share (%) as at
Country of establishment 31 December! 31 December
Subsidiary / associate incorporation | /facquisition 2006 2005 Profile
Subsidiaries ' _
Uotas UAB Lithuania P2002 00 100 | The entity is under Hguidation process.
Ventus Nafta AB Lithuania 2002 58.59 % 98.59 | Retail of refined oil products
Mazeikiy Naftos : Lithuania £2003 ! 100 100 The Company’s sales commissioner in
Prekybos Namai UAB § Lithuania
Mazeikiu Naita Latvia ; 2003 100 106 Wholesale of refined oil products in
Tirdzniecibas Nams SIA _ Latvia
Mazeikiu Nafta Trading : Estonia ¢ 2003 100 100 Wholesale of refined oil products in
House OU Estonia
Mazeikiu Nafta Trading | Poland 2003 100 100 Wholesale of refined oil products in
House Sp.z.0.0. ; Poland
Birzietiska Aibé UAB | Lithuania | 1999 - 100 | The entity was liquidated in January
2006
Juodeikiy Nafta UAB Lithuania 1995 100 100 Filling of tanks with oil products. The
entity is under liquidation process.
Mazeilkiy Elektriné AB i Lithuania 2003 - 85.72 The entity was merged with the
Company in December 2006 (Note 32}
Associates
Naftelf UAB Lithuania | 1996 34 34 | Sales of aviation fuel and construction
E of aviation fuel storage facilities

10



MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

{all tabular amounts are in USD'000 and L.TL 000 unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant matters affecting the Group
(1) Supply of crude oil

In February 2005 the Yukos Group, the Company’s major shareholder until 15 December 2006 and then its major suppiier
of crude oil based on long term supply agreements, suspended supplies to the Group. Management subsequently took steps
to ensure the continuity of supply by signing agreements with several separate oil traders and 8.2 millior tons of crude oil
were delivered to the refinery during 2006 {2005: 9 million tons).

The Company has in the past been dependent on receiving its crude oil deliveries from pipelines carrying oil through the
Russian Federation, although it also has the capacity o import crude oil through its Biitingg oil import-export terminal. At
the end of July 2006 crude oil deliveries to the Company via the pipeline were suspended and the Company has
subsequently been operating by importing crude oil through the oil terminal.

On 5 January 2007 the Company signed an agreement with PKN ORLEN that gives to PKN ORLEN the exclusive rights to
supply the Company with crude oil. The signing of the agreement is connected with the centralisation of crude oil purchases
to the PKN QORLEN Group. The agreement is concluded for an undetermined period.

(2) Fire af the oil refinery

On 12 October 2006 a fire at the oil refinery destroyed a vacuum distillation unit which was used in the manufacturing of
light oil products. After the fire until the first stage of the recovery plan was completed in February 2007, the oil refinery
was able to work at approximately half capacity. The first stage of the recovery plan was completed in February 2007 with
the commissioning and start-up of the refurbished oid vacuum distillation tower which was previously taken out of service.
The refurbished tower is capable of refining approx. 50 percent of the volume refined in the unit damaged by the fire. The
management estimates that it will take from 12 to 14 months to restore full capacity. The Company has its property and
business interruption losses insured in the international insurance market via the broker AON Limited, London. Property is
insured at reinstateent value. The Company’s civil liability is also insured in the international insurance market. As at the
date of the issuance of these consolidated financial statements the fire is under investigation by the insurance companies
and amounts of the compensation of losses are unknown.

(3) Going concern

The combined effects of the suspension of oil supply via the pipeline and the fire at the oil refinery had in 2006 and wiil
continue to have in future a significant adverse effect on the Group’s operations. However, the management believes that
based on its actions and the Group’s capital, financing and operating plans for 2007 there is no reason to doubt the
appropriateness of the going concern assumption in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the TASB. All International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the IASB and effective at the time of preparing these
consolidated financial statemenis have been adopted by the EU through the endorsement procedure established by the
Furopean Commission, with the exception of the International Accounting Standard IAS 39 "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. Following recommendations from the Accounting Regulatory Committee, the Commissiocn
adopted Regulations 2086/2004 and 1864/2005 requiring the use of IAS 39, minus certain provisions on portfolio hedging of
core deposits, by ail listed companies from 1 January 2005.

11



MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

.(all tabular amounts are in USD 000 and LTL.’000 unless otherwise stated)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Since the Group is not affected by the provisions regarding portfolio hedging that are not required by the EU-endorsed
version of TAS 39, the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply with both International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and International Financiai Reporting Standards issued by the IASB.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets.

‘The preparation of financial statements i conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise #s judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5. '

Correction of errors

The Group discovered an ervor made in its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 in respect of
related party disclosures. Petroval PTE Ltd was disclosed as a related party, although it was not related to the Group. As a result
of correcting this error, as at 31 December 2005 receivables from related parties were decreased by USD 52,187 thousand or
LTL 151,875 thousand and amounts payable to related parties were decreased by USD 5,591 thousand or LTL 16,270
thousand; receivables and payables to third parties were increased accordingly. Sales to related parties were decreased by USD
10,965 thousand or LTL 28,818 thousand and purchases from related parties were decreased by USD 90,227 thousand or LTL
251,511 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2005; sales and purchases from third parties were increased accordingly.

Standards, interpretations and amendments fo published standards effective in 2006

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2006 but are either not relevant to the Group’s operations or do not have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements:

- IAS 19 {Amendment), Employee Benefits

- TAS 21 (Amendment), Net Investment in Foreign Operation

- 1AS 39 (Amendment), Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

- IAS 39 (Amendment), The Fair Value Option

-TAS 39 and IFRS 4 {Amendment), Financial Guarantee Contracts

- IFRS 1 {Amendment), First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and IFRS 6 (Amendinent),

Hxploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

- IFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resource

- IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

- [FRIC 5, Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

- IFRIC 6, Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

Early adoption of standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards

The Group has not elected to early adopt any new standards, interpretations and amendrments 1o published standards.

12



MAZEIXIY NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

{all tabalar amounts are in USD’000 and LT1.’000 unless otherwise stated)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group .

Ceriain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2607 or later pericds but which the Group has not early adopted:

(@) IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and a complementary Amendment to IAS I, Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures (effeciive from I January 2007) .

[FRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of
qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including specified
minimum disclosures aboug credit risk, Hquidity risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk. It replaces
IAS 30, Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Firancial Institutions, and disclosure requirements in
YAS 32, Finaccial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The' Amendment to IAS I introduces disciosures about the level
of an entity’s capital and how it manages capital. The Group is currently assessing what impact the new IFRS and the
amendment to IAS 1 will have on disclosures in its financial statements. The Group will appiy IFRS 7 and amendment to 1AS
1 from 1 January 2007,

(b} IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective from 1 January 2008)

[FRS 8 replaces JAS 14, Segment Reporting. It specifies how an entity should report information about its operating segments
in annual financial statements and, as a consequential amendment to JAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, requires an entity to
report additional selected information about its operating segments in interim financial reports. It also sets out requirements for
related disclosures about products and services, geographical areas and major custorners. The Group is currently assessing what
impact the new [FRS will have on disclosures in its financial statements. The Group will apply IFRS 8 from 1 January 2009, At
the date of the issuance of these consolidated financial statements this standard was not adopted by the EU.

(c) I4S 23, Borrowing costs frevised March 2007} (effective from I January 2008}

TASB issued a revised JAS 23, Borrowing Costs on 29 March 2007, It supersedes IAS 23, revised in 1993. The main change
from the previous version is the removal of the option of immediately recognising as an expense borrowing costs that reate to
assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale. The revised Standard applies to borrowing costs
relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009. The Group
believes that the revised standard will not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements because currently

the Group’s accounting policy s fo capitalise borrowing costs. At the date of the issuance of these financial statements the
revised standard was not adopted by the E1J.

(d) IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March
2006)

The interpretation clarifies application of IAS 29 in the reporting period in which hyperinflation is first identified. It states that
IAS 29 should initially be applied as if the economy has always been hyperinflationary. It further clarifies calculation of
deferred income taxes in the opening balance sheet restated for hyperinflation in accordance with JAS 29, IFRIC 7 is not
relevant to the Group’s operations.

{e} IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006)

The interpretation clarifies whether IFRS 2 applies to transactions in which the entity cannot identify specifically some or al! of
the goods or services received. [FRIC 8 is not relevant to the Group’s operations.
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3.1 Basis of preparaiion (continued)
(f} IFRIC 8, Re-assessment of Embedded Derivatives (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006/

IFRIC 9 clarifies certain aspects of the treatment of embedded derivatives under IAS 39, Financial mstruments: Recognition

- and measurement. With certain exceptions, IAS 39 requires embedded derivatives to be separately recognised and measured
when the entity first becomes a party to the contract. The IFRIC was asked whether the treatment of an embedded derivative
has-to be reassessed subsequently if certain events occur. TFRIC 9 concludes that reassessment is prohibited unless there is a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under the
contract, in which .case reassessment is required. IFRIC 9 does not address the acquisition of confracts with embedded
derivatives in & business combination nor their possible reassessment at the date of acquisition. The management of the Group
believes that this interpretation will not significantly effect the financial statements of the Group. The Group will apply this
interpretation from 1 January 2007,

(g) IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | November
2006} '

IFRIC 10 prohibits the impairment fosses recognised in an interim period on goodwill, investments in equity instruments and
imvestments in financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. The Group will apply IFRIC 10
from 1 Januwary 2007, but i is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s accounts. At the date of the issuance of these
consolidated financial statements this interpretation was not adopted by the EU.

(h) IFRIC 11, IFRS 2—Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for an.nu.a!. periods begz‘nningion or. after 1 March
2007) ' '

The Interpretation addresses how to apply IFRS 2, Share-based Payments to share-based payment arrangements involving an
entity's own equity instruments or equity instruments of another entity in the same group. IFRIC 11 is not relevant to the
Group’s operations as the Group is not involved in share-based payment arrangements. At the date of the issuance of these
‘consolidated financial staternents this interpretation was not adopted by the EU.

(i} IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective from 1 Jarmary 2008)

[FRIC 12 addresses how service concession operators should apply existing IFRS to account for the obligations they undertake
and rights they receive in service concession arrangements. It does not address accounting for the government side of service
concession arrangements. IFRIC 12 is not relevant to the Group’s operations as the Group is not involved in service concession
arrangements. At the date of the issuance of these consolidated financial statements this interpretation was not adopted by the
UL

Endorsement by the European Union of certain of the above new or revised IFRSs effective on or after 1 January 2007 is
pending, However, management decided to include also these IFRSs in the above disclosure because the European Union may
require their application to periods before the endorsement.

3.2 Consolidation
() Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transterred to the (Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.
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3.2 Consolidation {continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, phus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured mitially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value ¢f the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement {see Note 3.6},

Inter-éompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on fransactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

{b) Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating fransactions with minority interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in the income stafement. Purchases
from minority interests result in goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

(¢} Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not congol, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss (see Note 3.6).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The Investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the associate after the
date of acquisition. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further iosses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the exfent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

3.3 Segment reporiing

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic envirenments.

15



MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2006

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL’000 unless otherwise stated)

3.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Iteres included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency”). The functional currency of the Company Is the
US dollar (USDY as it mainly influences sales prices for goods and services and material costs, the funds from financing
activities are mainly generated in the USD and the Company retains the major part of receipts from its operating activities in
the USD. A significant portion of the Company’s business is conducted in the US dollars and management uses the USD to
manage business risks and exposures and to measure performance of the business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency, and, due to the requirements of the laws of the Republic of Lithuania, in Lithuanfan Litas (LTL) which is the
Company’s additional presentation currency. Since 2 February 2002 the exchange rate of the Litas has been pegged to the euro
at a rate of LTL 3.4528 = EUR 1. As at 31 December 2006 the exchange rate of US Dollar to Lithuanian Litas was USD 1 =
LTL 2.6304 (2005 USD 1 = LTL 2.9102}.

The financial statements of the Group, prepared in US dollars, the functional currency of the Company, are translated to
presentation currency, Lithuanian Litas by using period end exchange rate for translation of assets and liabilities and average
exchange rate for the year for translation of income and expenses (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions). All resulting exchange differences are recognised as cumulative translation
adjustments as a separate component of equity.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

(¢} Group companies

The results and financial pesition of all Group entities {none of which has the curféncy of a hyperinflationary economy as ifs
functional currency) that have a functional currency different from the Company’s functional currency USD being a
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are transiated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reagonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are transiated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i1f) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity (cumulative transiation adjustment).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in subsidiaries, and of borrowings
__.and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to sharehoiders’ equity. When subsidiary is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary are treated as assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary and translated at the closing rate.
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3.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment. Land is shown at cost less
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are inchuded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets, except for catalysts which are depreciated using the unit of output method, and land which is not
depreciated, is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated

useful life, as follows:

— buildings 20-90 years

- oil refinery technological equipment 5-23 years
-~ oil refinery constructions 15-70 years
— oil terminal sea equipment 25 years
— vehicles 5-10 years
- railway transport 13-20 years
— engineering network and systems : 4-50 years

- other property, plant and equipment 3-40 years

Property, plant and equipment include spare parts that can only be used in connection with specific item of property, plant and
equipment.

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset or to the date of the next major renovation,
whichever is sooner. .

The assets’ residual values and usefiz] lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually at each year end.

- An asset’s carrying amount is writtén down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 3.7},

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included in the income statement. The loss arising from the retirement is included in the income
statement when the asset is derecognisad.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

3.6 Intangible assets

{a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented
separately on the balance sheet. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in the carrying value of investments in
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. Separately recognised goodwill is tested anmually and
whenever events or changes ia circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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3.6 Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the

goodwill arose. Each of those cash-generating units represents the Group’s investment by each primary reporting segment
{Note 3.7).

(b} Patents and licences

Patents and licences include acquired patents and licences for manufacturing technelogy used by the refinery. Patents and
licences are recognised at cost. They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation less
impairment, Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of patents and licences over their
estimated useful lives {4 years),

{c) Compurer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 - 5 years).

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment and whenever
events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be récoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered unpamnent are reviewed for possﬂo}e reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

3.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories for measurement purposes: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired, management intentions and whether the
nvestment is quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its financial agsets.at nitial recognition
and re-evalvates this designation at every reporting date, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Reclassifications out of or into this category after initial recognition are prohibited. '

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if
so designated by management if certain conditions are met. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either heid for trading or are expected to be
realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date. The Group did not hold any investments in this category during the period.

(b} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and with no intention of trading. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets and are included in non-current receivables and prepayments in the
balance sheet. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet (see Note 3.10). Bonds issusd
by financial institutions, which are not traded in an active market and are classified as part of the loans and receivables
measurement category, are included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.
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3.8 Financial assets (continued)
(¢} Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets quoted in an active market with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. The
Group did not hold any investments in this category during the period.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the,
other categories. They are inctuded in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment or investment
matures within 12 months of the balance sheet date in which case they are included in current assets.

Reguldr way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fajr value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denorminated in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between currency translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrving amount of the security. The currency translation differences on monetary securities are recognised in profit or
foss, translation differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity. Interest income on available-for-sale
securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-saie
equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s right to receive payments is established. All other
changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair vaive adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income staterment as gains and losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active {and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference o other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below ifs cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are irppaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised i profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recogaised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement. If, in a subsequent pericd, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in income statement. Impairment testing of
trade receivables is described in Note 3.10,
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3.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO}) method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

3.10 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and
defauit or definquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement within “administrative
expenses”.

3.11 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if
their carrving amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through a confinuing use. '

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafls are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

3.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
3.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payabﬁes and other payables are accrued when the counterparty performed its obligations under the contract and are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the amount at initial recognition and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Hability
for at least 12 months afier the balance sheet date.

3.16 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts in the consoiidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transaction, other than a business
combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax lability is settled.
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3,16 Deferred income tax {continued)

The non-monetary assets and Habilities of the Group are measured in its functional currency USD, and the Company’s taxable
profit and, hence, the tax base of its non-monetary assets and liabilities, is determined in LTL. Changes in the exchange rate
give rise to temporary differences that result in a recognition of deferred tax liability or asset. The resulting deferred tax is
charged or credited to income statemnent.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investiments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
wiil not reverse in the foreseeable fufure, : : :

3.17 Employee benefits

(o) Long-term employee benefils

Some Group companies provide bonuses and paid leave to their employees based on the years of service. The liability

recognised in the balance sheet in respect of long-term employee benefits is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at-
the balance sheet date. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at each balance sheet date by actuaries using the projected

unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash

flows using interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that

have terms of maturity approximating to the terms of the related liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in ¢the income and no “corridor” is applied. All past service costs arz
recognised immediately. ' '

(b} Profit-sharing and borus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(¢) Other employee benefits

Wages, salaries, contributions to the state social insurance funds, pafd annual leave and sick leave are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group.

3.18 Provisicns

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past-events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settie the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

3.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:
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3,19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(e Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the risk of loss of or damage to the goods, as well as any additional costs due to events
occusring after the time the goods have been delivered to the carrier or to a specified destination, is transferred from the Group
to the buyer in accordance with the standardised terms and conditions of sale (Incoterms) agreed with the buyer, and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. Hxcise taxes collected by the Group on behalf of the state are
excluded from saies revenue.

(b} Sales of services

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

{c} Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivabie is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at criginal
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

3.20 Leases — the Group Is the lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group bas substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the lability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rentai obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in long-term payables except for instalments due within 12 months which are inciuded in
current labilities. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter lease term if the Group
is not reasonably certain that it will obtain ownership of the assets.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease. ’ '

3.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Campany’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s firancial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders. '

3.22 Emission rights

The Group participates in a carbon dioxide cap and trade scheme. It is set a target to reduce its emissions of carbon dioxide to
a specified level (the cap). The Group is issued aliowances equal in number to its cap by the Government. Allowances are
issued free of charge. :

The Group measures both emission allowances and govermment grant at a nominal amount, i.e. zero. As actual emissions are
made, a lizbility is recognised for the obligation to deliver allowances. Liabilities to be settled using aliowances on hand are

ineasured at the carrying amount of those allowances. Any excess emissions to be purchased are measured at the market value
of allowances at the period end.

When unused emission allowances are sokd, sale proceeds are recogrised in the income statement within “other income”™.
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3.23 Government grants

Monetary grants from the govemment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Non-monetary government grants are recognised at
their nominal amount.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary to mafch
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

4. Financial risk management
4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it t¢ a variety of financial risks: market risk (inciuding currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. From time to time the Group may use derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Board provides written principles for overail risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess Hquidity.

(a) Market risk
(D) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Polish Zloty and Lithuanian Litas. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and iiabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group has a foreign currency risk management strategy that utilises derivatives to reduce ifs exposure to unanticipated
fluctuations in cash flows derived from sales to Poland caused by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Occasionally the Group uses forward and options contracts to manage their foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and Habilities. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

{i) Price risk
The Group occasionally enters into commedity swap contracts to reduce risk relating to the price volatility.
(b} Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of temporary cash
investments and accounts receivable. Maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying values of the financial
assets; the effect of any rights of sett-off is not significant.

The Group restricts placement of cash investments to financial institutions evaluated as highly creditworthy.

Concentrations of customers in the oil industry may impact the Group’s overall exposure to credit risk, as these customers
may be similarly effected by the changes in economic conditions. The Group has procedures in place to ensure on &
continious basis that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and do not exceed an acceptable credit
exposure fimit established by the management. Management believes that there is no significant rigk of loss to the Group
beyond the provisions already established.
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4.1 Financial risk factors (continued}
(c) Liguitdity risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adeguate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines
available. :

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate visk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The interest
rates of finance leases to which the Group is lessee are fixed at inception of the lease. These leases expose the Group to Tair
value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow and fair value interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow mterest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk.

4.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price.

The fair value of financial instraments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based om
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used
for Jong-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and the carrying value of accounts payable are assumed to
approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables and payables. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market inferest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

5, Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below.

(&) Impairment of pipeline assets

At the end of July 2006 crude oil deliveries via the pipeline from Russia to the Company were suspended and pipeline
connecting Birzai pumping station with the oil refinery is not used by the Group. Net book amount of urused property, plant
and equipment amounted to USD 2,212 thousand or LTL 5,818 thousand as at 31 December 2006. Total property, plant and
equipment in the pipeline operating segment amounted to USD 12,110 thousand or LTL 31,834 thousand. The management
of the Group believes that the interruption in crude oil supply via the pipeline is temporary, therefore no impairment loss
was recognised on the pipeline operating segment’s property, plant and equipment in the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2006. If it becomes apparent in future that the interruption is of a long term nature, the
pipeline assets will be tested for impairment and impairment loss, if any, will be recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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5.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
(@) Accounting for pipeline fill

The Group recognises pipeline fill representing crude oil which is in the pipe connecting the refinery and Butingé import-
export oil terminal as property plant and equipment. According to the technical specifications of equipment, there must
always be a certain 16vél of crude oil in the pipe. The Group has classified the pipeline fill as property, plant and equipment
because the management of the Group believes that this crude oil will be used for more than one year and its balance in tons
does not change and does not impact cost of sales. Pipeline fill is depreciated to its residual value which is equal to the crude
oil market price at each balance sheef date. Pipeline fill is tested for impairment annually. The balance of pipeline fill
amounted to USD 8,532 thousand or LTL 22,443 thousand as at 31 December 2006 (2005: USD 8,532 thousand or L'TL
24,829 thousand). :

(b} Accounting for carbon dioxide emission rights

The Group participates in a carbon dioxide cap and trade scheme. It is set a target to reduce its emissions of carbon dioxide
to a specified level {the cap). The Group is issued aliowances equal in number to its cap by the Government. Allowances are
issued free of charge. The Group measures both emission allowances and government grant at a nominal amount, i.e. zero.
As actual emissions are made, a liability is recognised for the obligation to deliver allowances. Liabilities to be settled using
allowances on hand are measured at the carrying amount of those allowainces, L.e. zero. Any excess emissions to be
purchased are measured at the market value of allowances at the period end. When unused emission allowances are sold,
sale proceeds are recognised in the income statement upon sale. Management judges that this policy helps to avoid income
statement volatility related to the different measurement bases and the timing of recognition of the emission rights asset and
the liability arising from the emission of pollutants. The market value of remaining unused carbon dioxide allowances of the
Group amounted to USD 31,720 thousand or LTI 83,436 thousand as at 31 December 2006 (2005: TUSD 184,649 thousand or
LTI 537,365 thousand). Income from the sale of emission allowances amounted to USD 13,415 thousand or LTI 35,937
thousand during the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: nil) (Note 23).

(c) Accounting for capital investment relief

According to the Investment Agreement signed on 29 October 1999 between the Company, the Government and Williams
International Company (from 19 September 2002 repiaced by Yukos Finance B.V.) which was valid until 15 December
2006 when Yukos International UK B.V. sold its shareholding in the Company to PKN ORLEN, the Company could reduce
its taxable profits by the capital investment relief. The Investment Agreement guaranteed that starting from 29 October 1959
for a period of 10 years the portion of taxable profit of the Company utilised for investment in property, plant and equipment

- was taxed at a corporate profit tax rate of 0 percent. During the reporting period the Group recognised capital mvestment
relief for theperiod from 1 Jenuary 2006 to 15 December 2006. Accordingly the Group reduced its income tax expenses by
capital investment relief of USD 2,667 thousand or LTL 7,337 thousand {2005: USD 4,355 thousand or LTL 12,438
thousand) (Note 26). The Group believes that the capital investment relief represents an investment fax credit. Accounting
for investment tax credits is not addressed in IFRS and the Group therefore considered requirements and guidance dealing
with similar and related issues. Management considered accounting treatment of the relief as a government grant under IAS
20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, or as a tax credit under IAS 12, Income
Taxes. However, as the relief is contingent on qualifying capital expenditures, management decided that the most
appropriate accounting policy is to recognise the tax benefits of the capital investment relief in the period in which the
qualifying capital expenditures are incwred.

(d) The Company’s selection of the USD as its functional currency

The Company selected the USD as its functional currency because the most of its income and the majority of its costs are
influenced by the international oil prices, which are set in the USD. In addition, the majority of the Company’s borrowings
and receipts from operating activities are in the USD. The management uses the USD to manage business risks and
exposures and to measure performance of the business. The management of the Company believes that the USD is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
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6. Segment information

{a) Primary reporting format - business segments

The Group has four reportable segments: oil refinery, oil terminal, pipeline operator and operator of petrol stations chain.

The oil refinery produces different grades of high octane unleaded gasoline, diesel, jet fuel, bitumen, LPG and sulphur,

The Group owns an import-export oil terminal in Biitingé on the Baltic sea coast. Until the end of July 2006 the terminal was
used for export of crude oil. After the crude oil supply to the Company via the pipeline from Russia was suspended, the
Group started using its oil terminal for the import of crude oil which is further used in the production process of oil refinery.

The pipeline segment consists of part of the Druzhba pipeline in the territory of Lithuania and a pipeline connecting the
BirZai pumping station with the oil refinery and the oil terminal. Until the suspension of crude oil supply from Russia via
pipeline in July 2006 the pipeline operator transported crude oil to the oil refinery and terminal in Bitingé and crude oil and
refined oil products to a terminal in Ventspils, Latvia. After July 2006 the pipeline operator transports refined oil products to

a terminal in Ventspils.

The Group owns approximately 25 petrol stations in Lithuania, 9 petrol stations are operated by the customer of the Group

under franchise agreement.

The Group allocates costs between segments directly.

The segment results for the vear ended 3 1 December 2006 are as follows:

usp

Total gross segment sales
Inter-segment sales
Sales

Operating profit / seginent result
Finance income {Noie 24)
Finance costs (Note 25)

Share of profit of associates (Note 10)

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense (Note 26}

Profit for the year

LTL

Total gross segment sales
Inter-segment sales

Sales

Operating profit / segment result
" Finance income (Note 24)
Finance costs {Note 25}
Share of profit of associates {Note 10)
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense (Note 26)
Profit for the year

Petrol

Oil refinery Gil terminal Pipeline stations  Other Group
4,243,163 17,763 19,164 47,269 1,256 4,328,615
(27,245) - - 27y (1,253) {28,525}
4215918 17,763 19,164 47,242 3 4,300,090
72,462 (20,984) 10,157 il (3413 61,305

: 39,339

(31,555)

65 - - - - &5

69,154
e (1293).
67861

s _ . Petrol

Qil refinery Qil terminal Pipeline stations  Other Group
11,707,677 49,208 53,257 129,525 3,447 11,943,114
(74,649) - - (72)  (3,438) {78,159)
11,633,028 49208 53,257 129,453 9 11,864,953
212,337 (57,667) 28,480 i2 (920} 182,242

: 107,655

(86,772

179

203,304
__(6229)

197,075
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6. Segment information (continued)

The segiment resuits for the year ended 31 December 2005 are as follows:

Usb
Petrol
Oil refinery Oil terminal Pipeline stations  Other Group
Total gross segment sales 3,931,814 30,158 28,093 31,416 1,258 4,022,739
Inter-segment sales (15,967) - - - (1251 (17218)
Sales 3,915,847 30,158 28,093 31,416 74,005,521
Operating profit / segment result 357,420 7,312 17.487 {1,796) (115) 380,308
Fingnce income (Note 24) : 14,854
Finance costs (Note 25) {31,840}
Share of profit of associates (Note 10) 103 - - - - 103
Profit before income tax ' 363,425
Income tax expense (Note 26) {44702}
Profit for the year 318,723
LTL
Peirol
Oil refinery Oil terminal Pipeline ‘stations  Other Group
Total gross segment sales 10,950,673 83,932 78,060 87,689 3,497 11,203,851
Inter-segment sales (44,6023 - - - {3478y  (48,080)
Sales 16,906,071 83,932 78,060 87,689 19 11,155,771
Operating profit / segment result 986,956 20,490 48,593 {(5,086) {203) 1,050,750
Finance income (Note 24) _ 41,633
Finance costs (Note 25) _ (88,257)
Share of profit of associates (Note 10) 286 - - - - 286
Profit before income fax 1,004,412
Income tax expense (Note 26) (118,698}
Profit for the year 885,714
Other segment items included in the income statement are as follows:
USD Year ended 31 December 2006
Petrol
Oil refinery Qil terminal Pipeline stations  Other Group
Depreciation {Note 7) 23,517 18,072 2,419 2,026 75 46,109
Amertisation (Note 8) 1,451 39 4 58 3 1,555
Reversal of PPE impairment (Note 7) 82 - - - - 82 -
LTL Year ended 31 December 2006
Petrol
Oil refinery Oil terminal Pipeline stations Other  Group
Depreciation (Note 7) 65,029 49,973 6,689 5,602 207 127,500
Amortisation {Note §) 3,992 107 11 160 8 4,278
Reversal of PPE impairment (Note 7) 219 - - - - 219
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6. Segment information (continued)

USD

Depreciation (Note 7)

Amortisation (Note 8)

Impairment of PPE (Note 7)

{Reversal of) PPE impairment {Note 7)

LTL

Depreciation (Note 7)

Amortisation (Note 8)

impairment of PPE (Note 7). -
{Reversal of) PPE impairment (Note 7)

Year ended 31 December 2005

Petrol
Qil refinery Oil terminal Pipeline stations  (ther Group
23,3505 8,673 2,797 2,606 130 37,711
1,298 40 - 34 15 1,387
1,556 - - 138 - 1,694
(124) - - (1,404) - (1,528}

Year ended 31 December 2005

Petrol
Oil refinery Oil terminal Pipeline stations Other  Group
65,229 24,045 7,733 7,214 360 104,581
3,604 ©110 - 93 41 . 3,848
4,309 - - 377 - 4,686
(339) - - (3,722) - {4,061

Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be

avzilabie to unreiated third parties:

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, trade and other receivabies
and cash and cash equivalents. Unallocated assets comprise deferred taxation, prepaid income tax and available-for-sale financial

assels.

Segment liabilities comprise operating Habilities. Unallocated Habilities comprise items such as income tax liabilities, borowings
meurred for financing purposes and related interest liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and intangible assets (Note 8), including

additions resulting from acquisition through business combinations {Notes 7 and 32).

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2006 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

Ush

Assets

Associates

Total assets

Liabilities

Capital expenditure (Notes 7 and 8)

LTL

Assets
Associates

Total assets
Liabilities
Capital expenditure (Notes 7 and 8)

0 0il Petrol .
refinery = terminai Pipeline stations Other Unallocated  Group
1,246,672 - 205,704 14,065 26,641 528 85,730 1,583,340
1,463 - _ . - - 1,463
1,248,135 205,704 14,065 26,641 528 89,730 1,584,803
368,917 4,263 3465 129 459,144 836,272
101,556 7,983 4,316 2 - 114,873

0il Oil Petrol

refinery  terminal Pipeline stations Other Unallocated  Group
3,279,246 541,084 36,997 70,076 1,390 236,025 4,164,818
3,848 - - - - 3,843
3,283,094 541,084 36,997 70,076 1,390 236,025 4,168,666
970,400 11,214 9,114 339 1,207,732 2,199,730
276,844 21,712 2,791 11,804 6 - 313,157
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6. Segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2005 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

Uspb
Oil Oil Petrol
refinery terminal Pipeline stations Other Unallocated Group
Assets 1,323,257 223,543 14,381 21,388 694 21,057 1,604,320
Associates 1,262 - - - - - 1,262
Total assets 1,324,519 223,543 14381 21,388 069%4 21,057 1,605,582
1iabilities 421,827 4054 1,548 2,059  9¢ 501,915 931,499
Capital expenditure (Notes 7 and 8) 52,537 1,307 1,071 1,472 33 - 56,422
LTL
_ Qil Gil Petrol
- refinery terminal Pipeline stations Other Unallocated Group
Assets 3,850,943 650,555 41,852 62,243 2,620 61,280 4,668,893
Associates 3,672 - - - - 3,672
Total assets 3,854,615 650,555 41,852 62,243 2,020 61,280 4,672,565
Liabilities 1,227,875 11,798 4,505 5,992 279 1,460,673 2,710,822
Capital expenditure (Notes 7 and 8) 146,910 3,550 2,982 4,205 95 - 157742

(b) Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The home-country of the Company — which is also the main operating company — is Lithuania.

2006 2005

Sales ' sh LTL USh LTL

Lithuania 1,009,398 2,769,726 872,932 2,438,043
Switzerland 469,127 1,287,638 503,135 1,398,189
UK 449 465 1,252,266 353,521 892,274
Laivia 335,742 921,669 304,416 848,836
Estonia - : 373,798 1,032,601 - 272,440 760,430
Poland - 267,478 732,989 255,413 714,566
Netherlands 251,944 705,700 124,983 349963
Canada 239,579 658,380 202,228 575,885
Singapors 156,692 424248 26,899 74,916
Ukraine 133,773 365,532 78,103 217,828
Ieeland . 117,452 323,129 46,463 129,403
France 100,911 285291 13,386 37,281
Finland 100,462 280,682 118,556 327,133
Norway 54,856 154,214 189,807 517,688
USA 41,030 115,585 179,044 500,460
Spain 45,900 129,516 82,259 222,085
Germany 5,677 16,012 105,152 285,190
Belgium - - 142,420 391,797
Other countries 146,806 409,777 134,364 373,804
Total 4,300,090 11,864,955 4,005,521 11,155,771

Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customer is located.
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6. Segment information (continued)

Total assets

Lithuania
Other countries

Associates (Note 10)
Unallocated assets

Tota] assets are allocated based on where the assets are located:

Capital expenditure

Lithuania
Other countries

Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the assets are located.

Analysis of sales by category

Sales of goods
Revenue from services

7. Property, plant and equipment
Usb

At 1.January 2005

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net book amount
Exchange differences

Acquisitien of subsidiary (Note 32)
Additions

Disposals

Retirements

Transfers

Reclassifications to non-current assets classified as

held for sale

Reversal of impairment charge
Impairment charge
Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2005

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

2006 2005

UsD LTL Usp LTL

1,379,333 3,628,199 1,493,171 4,345,426

114,277 300,354 96,092 262,187

1,493,610 3,928,793 . 1,583,263 4,607,613

1,463 -3 848 1,262 3,672

89.730 236,025 21,057 61,280

(1,584,803 4,168,666 1,605,582 4,672,565

2006 2005

usn LTL UsSDh LTL

114,835 313,052 56,288 157,370

38 105 ) 134 372

114,873 313,157 56,422 157,742

2006 2005

UsD LTL USD LTL
4,254,540 11,738,680 3,040,846 10,975,636
- 45,550 126 275 64,675 180,135
4 300,090 11,864,935 4.005,521 11,155.771

Land and Plant and Construction

buildings machinery Other PPE  in progress Total
86464 669,771 75,100 17,829 849,164
(30,817) (290.689) {29.847) - (351,353)
55,647 379,082 45253 17,829 497 811
55,647 - 379,082 45253 17,829 497 811
{1,609 (508) {354) (40) (2,911)
1,960 4,328 252 1,174 7,714
173 5,106 3,386 38,412 48,077
(180} (62) {56) - (298)
- (376) (2,172} - (2,548)
930 6,314 660 (7,904) -
{937 (i) (5 - 952)
1,411 - - 117 1,528
- (58) (72) (1,564) (1,694)
(2,437 (28,727) (6,547) - 37,711)
54,958 365,689 40,345 48,024 509,016
83,530 676,775 75,341 48,024 883,670
(28,572)  (311,086) (34,996) - (374,654)
54,958 365,689 40,345 48,024 509,016
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7. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

USD

Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amount
Exchange differences

Additions

Disposals

Retirements

Transfers

Reclassifications from (to) to other assets
Reversal of impairment charge
Depreciation charge

Closing net book amonnt

At 31 December 2006

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

LTL

At 1 January 2005

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net book amount
Fixchange differences '
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 32)
Additions

Disposals

Retirements

Transfers

Reclassifications to non-current assets classified as

held for sale

Reversal of impairment charge
Impairment charge
Depreciation charge

Closing net bock amount

At 31 December 2005

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

Land and Plant and Construction
buildings machinery Other PPE in progress Total
54,958 365,689 40,345 48,024 509,016
1,400 981 229 90 2,700
3,752 20,378 6,489 79,169 109,788
(854) (445) (101 - {1,400)
(35) 30 (54 (10n) (220)
1,522 11,837 a9 {13,458 -
- 16 - (130) {114)
52 30 - - 32
(2,530) {38,179 (5,400) - {46,10%
58,265 360,277 41,607 113,594 573,743
89,384 706,831 80,511 113,594 990,320
(31,119 (346,554) - (38.904) - {416,577
58,265 360,277 41,607 113,594 573,743

Land and Plant and Construction
buildings  machinery Other PPE in progress Total
219,143 1,697,535 190,341 45,187 2,152,206
{78,106) (736,751} (75,6473 - (890,504)
141,037 960,784 114,694 45,187 1,261,702
141,037 260,784 114,694 45,187 1,261,702
16,560 136,586 15,195 11,144 179,485
5,629 12,430 724 3,372 22,153
463 17,465 9,544 106,323 133,795
(508%) (175} {158) - (838)
- (1,045)- (5.950) ' - {6,9935)
2,515 18,030 1,753 (22,298} -
(2.718) 29) (15} - {2,762)
3,721 - - 340 4,061
- {168) (209) {4,309} {4,686)
(6,763) (79,652} (18,166) - (104581
159,939 1,064,226 117,412 139,759 1,481,336
243,089 1,969,548 219,257 139,759 2,571,653
(83,150) {905,322 (101,845} - (1,090,317)
159,939 1,064,226 117,412 139759 1,481,336
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7. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

LTL

Land and Plant and Construction

buildings  machinery Other PPE  in progress Total
Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amount 159,939 1,064,226 117,412 139,759 1,481,336
Exchange differences (11,802) {96,886) {10,768) (20,144 {139,600)
Additions 10,223 54,818 17,873 216,602 299,516
Disposals (2,363) (1,225) (277 - (3,867)
Retirements {94y {81) {151y 277 {603)
Transfers 4,181 32,319 265 (36,76%) -
Reclassifications from (to) to other assets - 46 - (373) (327)
Reversal of impairment charge 139 80 - - 219
Depreciation charge (6,960} {105.624) (14,916) - {127,500)
Closing net book amount 153,261 947,673 109,442 298,798 1509174
At 31 December 2006
Cost 235,116 1,859,249 211,777 298,798 - 2,604,940
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ' (81,855} {911,576) (102,335) - {1,095,766}
Net book amount 153,261 947.673 109,442 298,798 1,509,174

Reversal of impairment charge of USD 82 thousand or LTL 219 thousand (2005: USD 1,528 thousand or LTL 4,061 thousand) is
included in administrative expenses in the income statement. Impairment charge for the vear ended 31 December 2005 of USD 1,694
thousand or LTL 4,686 thousand is included in administrative expenses in the income statement.

Depreciation expense has been allocated as follows:

2006 2005
USp LTL Usph LTL
Cost of sales 39,644 109,623 30,517 84,660
Selling and marketing costs 4,788 13,240 5,595 15,500
Administrative expenses 1,677 4,637 1,599 4,421
46,109 127,500 37,711 104,581

As at 31 December 2006 property, plant and equipment with the net book amount of USD 5,313 thousand or LTL 13,976 thousand
(2005: USD 2,031 thousand or LTL 5,911 thousand) were provided as collaterat for bank borrowings (Note 19).

No material borrowing costs were capitalised during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005.

The net beok value of leased assets included in the table above, where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease is as follows:

2006 2608
USD LTL UShb LTL
Land and building 513 1,349 1,002 2,917
Plant and machinery 443 1,165 454 1,321
Other PPE 22 58 29 84
978 2,572 1,485 4322
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8. Intangible assets

USD

At 1 January 2005

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net book amount
Exchange differences

Additions

Armortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2005
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 Becember 2006
Opening net book amount
Exchange differences

Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2006
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Patents and Software under

Software licences  development Total
7,952 6,057 - 14,009
{4,516) (4,807) - (9,323)
3,436 1,250 - 4,685
3,436 1,250 - 4,686
(14 - - (14)
615 16 - 631
(978) (409) - (1,387)
3,059 857 - 3,916
8,328 6,073 - 14,401
(5,269) (5,218) - (10,485)
3,055 857 - 3,516
3,059 857 - 3,916
28 - 2 30

227 - 4,858 5,085
(1,157) - (398) - (1,555
2,157 459 4,860 7,476
8,389 6,051 4,860 19,300
{6,232) (5,592) - (11,824)
2,157 459 - 4,860 7,476
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8. Intangible assets (continued)

LTL Patents and Software nnder

' Software licences  development Total
At I Janunary 2005
Cost 20,154 15,3352 - 35,506
Accumuiated amortisation -(11,446) {12,183} - {23,629)
Net book amount 8,708 3,169 - 1,877
Year ended 31 December 2008
Opening net book amount 8,708 3,169 - 11,877
Exchange differences 1,161 414 - 1,575
Additions 1,746 46 . 1,792
Amortisation charge (2,713} (1,135) - (3,848}
Closing net book amount 8,902 2,494 - 11,396
At 31 December 2005
Cost 24,236 17,674 - 41,910
Accumulated amortisation (15,334) (15,180) - (30,514)
Net book amount : 8,902 2,494 - 11,396
Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amount 8,502 2,494 - 11,396
Exchange differences (672) (192) (230} {1,094)
Additions 627 - 13,014 13,641
Amortisation charge (3,183) {(1,095) - (4,278)
Closing net book amount 5,674 1,207 12,784 19,665
At 31 December 2086
Cost 22,066 15,917 12,784 50,767
Accumulated amortisation (16,392) 14,710y - (31,102)
Net book amount . 5,674 1,207 12,784 19,665
Amoriisation expense has been aflocated as follows:

2006 2005
USDh LTL Ush LTL
Cost of sales 457 1,257 479 1,327
Selling and marketing costs 58 160 46 128
Administrative expenses 1,040 2,861 862 2,393
1,555 4,278 1,387 3,848

The Group does not have internally generated intangible assets.

In 2005 the Company was issued allowances by the Government to emit 6,622,887 tons of carbon dioxide in 2005 - 2007. In the
balance sheet the Group recognised allowances and the related government grant at a nominal amount, i.e. zero. In October 2005
through a business combination the Group acquired additional allowances to emit 2,651,020 tons of carbon dioxide in 2005 ~
2007. These allowances were not recognised in the balance sheet of the Group. In 2006 actual emissions of the Group amounted to
1,943,226 tons (2005: 2,143,201 tons) and the Group sold allowances to emit 1,570,060 tons of carbon dioxide (2005: nii). The
market value of the remaining unused allowances amounted to USD 31,720 thousand or LTL 83,436 thousand as at 31 December
2006 (2005: USD 184,649 thousand or LTL 537,365 thousand).
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9. Goodwill

UsD LTL
At 1 January 2008 - -
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 32) 1,429 4,103
Acquisition of share in subsidiary (Note 32} 449 1,196
Exchange differences (36) 60
At 31 December 2003 1,842 - 5,36}
At 1 January 2006 1,842 5,361
Acquisition of share in subsidiary (Note 32) 2,707 7,120
Exchange differences 196 -
4,745 12,481
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified according to business segment.
A business segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:
2006 2005
USh LTL Usp LTL
Oil refinery 4,268 11,225 1411 4,105
Petro! stations 477 1,256 431 1,256
4,745 12,481 1,842 5,361

All geodwill was allocated to the Lithuania geographical segment as at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2G03.

10. Investments in associates

2006 2005
USD LTL TSP LTL
Beginning of the year 1,262 3,672 1,336 3,386
Share of profit after tax 65 175 163 286
Exchange differences 136 e (177 -
End of the year . 1,463 3,848 1,262 3,672

Investments in associates represent investment in a 24% interest held in Naftelf UAB, ncorporated in Lithuania.

The summarised financial information of the associate which is unlisted is as follows:

2006 2005
USD LTL UsDh LTL
Assets 4,364 11,480 4,452 12,957
Liabilities 60 159 740 2,154
Revenues 31,396 86,379 24,741 68,643
Profit 135 371 346 960
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11. Non-current receivables and prepayments

2006 2005
USD LTL Usb LTL

Trade receivables 1,971 5,185 1,897 5,521
Less; provision for impairment of receivables (1,377) (3,622) {1,308) (3,807)
Trade receivables - net _ 594 1,563 589 1,714
Prepayments for PPE and intangible assets 27,789 73,096 15,183 44,191
Reimbursement for environmental obligations receivable
from the Government {MNotes 21, 33) - - 10,807 31,449
Prepayment for real estate tax {Note 33) - - 1,134 3,300
1.0ans to employees 195 513 191 557
Other non-current receivables 100 263 91 267

28,678 75,435 27,997 81,478

The fair values of non-current receivables and prepayments approximate their carrying values.

12. Inventories

2006 2005

UsDh LTL USD LTL

Raw and supplementary materials (at cost) 21,016 53,280 24247 70,364
Raw and supplementary materials (at net realisable value) 110,491 290,636 769 2,238
Finished goods and goods for resale (at cost) 53,031 139,492 177,534 516,659
Finished goods and goods for resale (at net realisable value) 115,077 302,699 1,016 2,957
Semi-finished goods (at cost) _ 4,588 12,068 12,501 36,380
Semi-finished goods (at net realisable value) 11,946 31,423 20,475 59,586
Spare parts and other (at cost) 32,269 84,881 20,577 59,884
348,418 916,479 257,119 748 268

Semi-finished goods include oil products that are produced by the oil refinery and used in further stages of production.
However, these products might also be sold in the market. '

Inventory amounting to TJSD 112,500 thousand or LTL 295,920 thousand (20035: USD 90,000 thousand or LTL 261,918 thousand) is
provided as collateral for letters of credit and guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the Group.

13. Trade and other receivables

2006 2005
Usp LTL UsD LTL

Trade receivables 100,450 264224 143,246 416,875
Less provision for impairment of receivables (17,742) {46,669) (15,366) (44,718)
Trade receivables — net 82,708 217,353 127,880 372,157
Receivables from related parties (Note 33) 905 2,381 851 2,476
Prepaid and recoverable taxes, other than corporate income tax 3,613 9,504 2,807 8,169
Accrued mcome and deferred charges 4,351 11,445 10,515 30,601
Other receivables 2,299 6,047 2,554 7,433

93,876 246,932 144,607 420 836
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13. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying values.

Receivables from certain customers amounting up to USD 61,770 thousand or LTL 162,479 thousand (Z005: up to USD 50,145
thousand or LTL 145,933 thousand) are provided as collateral for letters of credit issued by the banks on behalf of the Group. As at

31 Decermber 2006 receivables from those customers amounted to USD 14,794 thousand or LTL 38,914 thousand (2005: USD
16,240 thousand or LTL 47 262 thousand).

14. Cash and eash equivalents

2006 2005
USD LTL Usp LTL
Cash at bank and on hand 288,984 760,143 536,616 1,561,660
Bonds issued by financial institutions 82,300 216,482 - -
Short-term bank deposits 65,098 171,234 101,197 294,504
436,382 1,147,859 637,813 1,856,164

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 4.98 % (2005: 3.58 %). These deposits bave an average maturity of 47
days (20035 30 days).

Bonds issued by financial mstitutions of USD 82,300 thousand or LTL 216,482 thousand {2005: nil) consist of short-term
bonds which are not traded in an active market. The effective interest rate on the bonds was 5.14 %. They have an average
maturity of 32 days,

Cash and cash equivalents required to be maintained under the terms of letters of credit and guarantees issued by banks for
settlements with suppliers is presented below:

2006 2005
UsD LTL USD LTL
Cash and short-term deposits held at banks to secure issued
letters of credit 206,892 544209 457,788 1,332,255
Cash held at banks to secure guaranties issued by banks 6,563 17,263 7,415 21,579
Bonds held at banks o secure issued letters of credit 82.300 216,482 - -
295,755 777,954 463,203 1,353,834

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the foliowing for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

2006 2005
usp LTL USD LTL
Cash and cash equivalents 436,382 1,147,859 637,813 1,856,164
Bank overdrafts (Note 19) (7013 (1,844) - -
433,681 1,146,015 637,813 1,856,164

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits to be maintained under the terms of letters of credit and guarantees issued by banks
were classified as cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement because these funds are held for
meeting short term operating cash comunitments and are restricted for periods shorter than three months,

Cash af bank amounting to USD 10,656 thousand or LTL 28,030 thousand (2005: USD 54,377 thousand or LTL 158,248 thousand) is
provided as collateral for bank borrowings and for letters of credit and guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group (Note 19).
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14, Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The carTying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2006 2005
USD LTL USD LTL
US dollar 331,542 872,088 544,819 1,585,533
Lithuanian Litas 44,98 116,337 52,349 152,346
Buro : 31,118 81,853 6,962 20,261
Other : : 29,494 77.581 13,683 98,024
436,382 1,147,859 637,813 1.856,164

15. Share capital

As at 3] December 2006, the Company’s authorised share capital comprised 708,821,122 (2005 707,454,130) ordinary
registered shares with a.par value of LTL 1 per share. All issued shares are fully paid.

On 28 December 2006 the Company issued 1,366,992 shares to the shareholders of MaZeikiy Elekiriné AB as the purchase
congideration for 14.28% of MaZeikiy Flektriné AR ordinary share capital. The fair value of the shares issued amounted to
1JST) 5,275 thousand or LTL 13,873 thousand {USD 3.86 or LTL 10.15 per share) (Note 32).

Thers were no movements in number of shares outstanding during 2005.
16. Reserves

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under Lithuanian, Estonian and Polish legislation. In Lithuania and Estonia annual
transfer of 5% of net profit is compuisory until the reserve reaches 10% of the share capital. In Poland annual transfer of 8% of
the net profit for thé financial year is compulsory until the reserve reaches 1/3 of the share capital. The legal reserve cannot be
distfibuted as dividends and is formed to cover future losses. In Estonia and Poland the legal reserve can be also used to
increase share capital. As at 31 December 2006 the legal reserve amounted to USD 18,774 thousand or LTL 50,362 thousand
(2005: USD 13,494 thousand or LTL 36,089 thousand).

17. Other non-~current lizbilities

- 20006 2605
UShH LTL usp LTL
Long-term empioyee benefits 3,876 10,195 3,543 10,311
Government grant relating to purchases of PPE (Note 33) 4.963 13,055 4,963 14,443
8,839 23,250 8,506 24,754

Long-term employee benefits include bonuses and paid leave provided to the employees of the Group based on the years of
service.

Government grant relating (o purchases of PPE includes financing of USD 4,963 thousand or LTL 13,055 thousand (2005:
USD 4,963 thousand or LTL 14,443 thousand) received from the Government for construction of apartment blocks for Russian
citizens in Vsevolotzk, St. Petersburg. The Government fully financed the construction of these apartment blocks as part of an
agreement to enable Russian citizens (former empioyees of oil refinery) to move from Lithuania back to Russia. The
construction was completed in 1998 and the buildings with a carrying value of USD 4,963 thousand were included within other
PPE balance in property, plant and equipment of the Group. Subsidies will be netted off against property, plant and equipment
after an appropriate decision is taken by the Government supporting this course of action.
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18. Trade and other payables

2006 2005
USD LTL USDh LTL
Trade payables 293,128 771,042 314,913 916,460
Amounts due to related parties (Note 33) 146 384 686 1,997
Advances received 1,458 3.836 6,312 18,368
Accruals and deferred income 15,087 39,685 13,740 39,984
Taxes other than corporate income tax 47,146 124,013 56,097 163255
Social security contributions 1,970 5,183 2,847 8,287
Other current lHabijities 946 2,488 862 2,482
359,881 946,631 395457 1,150,833
19. Borrowings
2006 20608
UsSp LTL USD LTL
Non-current
Bank borrowings 160,112 421,158 163,815 476,734
Loans from related parties (Note 33) 290,090 763,053 290,233 844,636
Finance lease liabilities - - 28 82
450,202 1,184 211 454 076 1,321,452
Current
Bank overdrafts 701 1,844 - -
Bank borrowings 5,881 15,469 9,321 27,126
Loans from related parties (Note 33) 282 742 238 693
Finance lease liabilities 30 79 253 736
' 6,894 18,134 9,812 28,555
Total borrowings 457,096 1,202,345 463 888 1,350,007

Total borrowings include collateralised liabilities of USD 3,438 thousand or LTL 9,043 thousand (2005: USD 726 thousand or
LTI 2,113 thousand). Cash (Note 14) and property, plant and eguipment {Note 7) of the Group is provided as collateral for banic
borrowings. The rights to the asset leased under finance lease revert to the lessor in the event of default. Borrowings amounting
to USD 163,158 thousand or LTL 429,171 thousand (2005: USD 172,402 thousand or LTL 501,724 thousand) are guaranteed

by the Government.

Borrowings amounting to USD 166,597 thousand or LTL 438,216 thousand (2005: USD 172,822 thousand or LTL 502,947
thoasand) are bearing floating inferest rate with repricing period between 1 and 6 months. Borrowings (excluding finance lease
liabilities) of USD 290,469 thousand or LTE 764,050 thousand (2005: USD 290,785 thousand or LTI 846,242 thousand) are

bearing fixed interest rafe.

Maturity dates for borrowings bearing fixed interest rate {(excluding finance lease liabilities) are as follows:

2006 2005
UsD LTL USDh LTL .
6 months or less 236 621 273 794
6-12 months 143 376 278 809
1-5 years 181,742 478,054 109,487 318,629
Over § years 108,348 284,999 180,747 526,010
290,469 764,050 290,785 846,242
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19. Borrowings (continued)

The maturity of non-current borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) is as follows:

2006 _ 2005
USD LTL UsD LTL
Between 1 and 2 years 6,086 16,011 5,657 16,463
Between 2 and 5 years 279,518 735,243 173,791 505,766
Over § years 164,598 432,957 274,600 799,141
: : 450,202 1,184,211 454,048 1,321,370
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:
2006 2005
USD Other USsSD Other
Bank overdrafts - 5.2% - -
Bank borrowings 6.8% 5.1% 5.2% 3.8%
Borrowings from related parties 7% 4.9% 7% 4.9%
Finance lease liabilities _ - 52% - 7.6%
The fair value of non-current borrowings bearing fixed interest rate is as follows;
2006 2008
UsDh LTL UsD LTL
Borrowings 297,763 783,236 308,472 897,715

The fair value is based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate of 6.36 % (2005: 5.70 %). The carrying
amounts of non-current borrowings bearing floating interest rate and short-term borrowings approximate their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2006 2005
Usp LTL USDh . LTL
US doilar _ 452,085 1,189,164 461,329 1,342,560
Other currencies 5,011 13,181 2,559 7,447
- 457,096 1,202,345 463,888 1,350,007
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:
2006 2005
UsDh LTL USh LTL
Floating rate
- expiring within one year 29,000 76,282 109,352 318,236
- eXplring within two vears ' 1,200 3,156 518 1,499
30,200 79,438 109,867 319,735

The borrowings outstanding as at 31 Pecember 2006 and 31 December 2005 were subject to a number of covenants, such as
exclusive use of loans and restricted management ability to pledge, mortgage or sell the assets, the acquisition of which was
financed by loans or which value exceeds amounts specified in the loan agreements, restricted entering into [ease agreements or
assuming any obligations on behalf of third parties pursuant to guarantees, assst pledge or any other agreernents if the Group
commitments exceed the amounts specified in loan agreements, restricted-investments inte other entities if the Group's
commitments exceed the amounts specified in the foan agreements, prohibited granting of loans to the third parties if the loan
amount exceeds the amount specified in the loan agreements, throughout the duration of the loan agreements without the
ienders’ approval. The management believes that the Group has complied with these covenants.

40



MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL’000 unless otherwise stated)

20, Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax Habilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2606 2005
S LTL usp LTL
Deferred tax assets:
- to be recovered after more than 12 months 25,568 67,254 17,843 51,927
- 10 be recovered within 12 months 10,920 28,724 3,350 9,749
36,488 95,978 21,193 61,676
Deferred tax liabilities:
— 10 be recovered after more than 12 months (388) (1,021) (279) (812)
—10 be recovered within 12 months - - (23) (66)
{388) {1,021) (302) {878)
36,100 94,957 20,891 50,798
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
2006 2005
UsDh LTL USD LTL
Beginning of the year 20,891 60,798 16,644 42,184
Exchange differences - {7,091) - 2,018
Income statement benefit (Note 26}
- relating to the origination and reversal of temporary
differences 13,423 36,466 4,247 16,399
- relating to changes in tax rates 1,786 4,784 - -
15,209 41,250 4,247 16,599
End of the year 36,100 04,957 20,891 60,798

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsettmg of balances

within the same tax jurisdictions, is as follows:

USD
Differences in
remeasuring Unrealised profit
non-monetary assets Accrued in inventory and
and liabilities into expenses and  valuation at net
Deferred tax assets functional currency  provisions  realisable value Other Total
At 1 January 2005 17,066 - - 13 17,079
Credited to income statement 1,806 1,646 526 136 4,114
At 31 December 20035 18,872 1,646 526 149 21,193
{Charged) / credited to income statement 9.058 1,755 4,503 21 15,295
At 31 December 2006 27,930 3,401 5,029 128 36,488
Differences in
remeasuring
nen-monetary assets
and iiabilities into
Deferred tax liabilities functional currency Total
At 1 January 2005 (435) (435)
Credited to income statement 133 133
At 31 December 2005 (302) (302)
(Charged) to income statement (86) (86)
At 31 December 2006 (388) " {388)
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20, Deferred income tax (continued)

LTL
Differences in
remeasuring Unrealised profit
nop-monetary assets Accrued in inventory and
and liabilities into expenses and  valuation at pet
Deferred tax assets ' functional currency  provisions  realisable value Other Total
At 1 January 2005 43,254 - _ - 33 43,287
Exchange differences 1,331 228 245 35 2,039
Credited to income statement 10,136 4,562 1,286 366 16,350
At 31 December 2005 54,921 4,790 1,531 434 61,676
Exchange differences (5,782} (672) {692) (39} (7,185)
{Charged) / credited to income statement 24,328 4,828 12,389 (58} 41,487
At 31 December 2006 73,467 8,946 13,228 337 95,978
Differences in
remeasuring
now-monetary assets
and liabilities into
Deferred tax liabilities functional currency Total
At 1 January 2005 {1,103) {1,103)
Exchange differences (24 (24)
Credited to income statement 249 249
At 31 December 2005 (878) (878)
Exchange differences 94 94
(Charged) to income statement {237 {2373
At 31 December 2006 {1,021} (1,021)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss camry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of USD 2,123
thousand or LTL 5,584 thousand (2005: USD 2,742 thousand or LTL 7,980 thousand) in respect of losses amounting to UJSD
13,718 thousand or LTL 36,081 thousand (2005: USD 17,032 thousand or LTL 49,366 thousand) that arose in loss maiking
subsidiaries and that can be carried forward against future taxable income. Tax iosses can be carried forward for five vears

to be offset against future taxable income. The expiry dates are as follows:

2006 2005

USD LTL usp LTL

Expiry date
2006 - - 3,298 9,598
2007 2,174 5718 1,858 5,407
2008 1,526 4,013 1,379 4,013
2009 3,929 10,334 3,707 10,788
2010 4,821 12,682 6,790 19,760
2011 1,268 3,334 - -
13,718 36,081 17,032 49,566

Deferred income tax liabilities of USD 1,181 thousand or LTI 3,106 thousand (2005: USD 958 thousand or LTL 2,788
thousand) have not been recognised for the taxes that would be payable on the uaremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Deferred income tax liabilities were not recognised because the parent has determined that those profits will not be distributed in
. the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled USD 3,953 thousand or LTL 10,398 thousand as at 31 December 2006

(2065: USD 3,207 thousand or 1.TY. 9,333 thousand).
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21. Provisions for liabilities and charges

USD Penalty
Claims Claim imposed by the
received from received from Environmental Competition
customers the supplier obligations Council Total
At 1 January 2006 1,551 2,500 11,322 10,956 26,769
Charged/(credited) to income statement
- additicnal provisions - - 855 - 855
- unused amounts reversed - - (8,544) - (8,544)
Used during the vear - - (90) (11,173) (11,263)
Exchange differences 113 - 744 177 1,034
At 31 DBecember 2006 1,664 2,900 4,287 - 8,851
LTL Penalty
Claims Claim imposed by the
received from  received from  Environmental Competition
customers the supplier obligations Council Total
At 1 January 2006 4,514 8,440 32,949 32,000 77,903
Charged/(credited) to income statement
- additional provisions - - 2.320 - 2,320
- upused amounts reversed - - (23,168) - {(23,168)
Used during the year - - (243) {32,000) {32,243)
Exchange differences {137) (812) (581) - (1,530}
At 31 December 2006 4,377 7,628 131,277 - 23,282
Amalysis of total provisions: 2006 2005
Usb LTL USD LI
- non-current (environmental obligations) 2,455 6,458 11,322 32,949
- current 6,396 16,824 15,447 44,954
8,851 23,282 26,769 77,903

(@) Claims received from customers

Provisions of USD 1,664 thousand or LTL 4,377 thousand (2005: USD 1,551 thousand or L'TL 4,514 thousand) have been
made against probable losses in relation o claims received from the customers of Mazeikiu Nafta Trading House Sp.z.0.0. of
USD 1,093 thousand or 1.TI. 2,875 thousand (2005; USD 980 thousand or LTL 2,852 thousand) and a claim of USD 571
thousand or LTL 1,502 thousand (2005; USD 571 thousand or LTL 1,662 thousand) received from Yukos Oif Company
OAO.

Due o uncertainty in the interpretation of the laws Mazeikiu Nafta Trading House Sp.z.0.0. has not paid to the customs
office petrol duty relating to the period from 1 May to 8 October 2004. The customers of Mazeikin Natfta Trading
House Sp.z.0.0. claimed that the selling price should be reduced by this petrol duty. The Group created a provision for
probable losses in relation to the claims received from the customers of Mazeikiu Nafta Trading House Sp.z.0.0.

In 2002 the Company received a claim of USD 1,602 thousand from Yukos Oil Company OAO for compensation of
losses incurred due to the accident in oil terminal which let to a vessel being remaining unloaded. In 2003 the claim
was reduced to USD 571 thousand (equivalent to LTL 1,502 thousand as at 31 December 2006). The Company decided to
accept the claim and made a provision for USD 571 thousand or LTL 1,502 thousand {2005: USD 571 thousand or LTL
1,662 thousand).
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21. Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

{b) Claim received from the supplier
A provision of USD 2,900 thousand or LTL 7,628 thousand (2005: USD 2,900 thousand or LTL 8,440 thousand) has been

made against probable losses in refation te the claim received from PPS Pipeline Systems (PPS), the contractor of the oil
terminal project, {o compensate Lithuanian VAT,

In 2000, the Company received a claim from PPS to compensate Lithuanian VAT in the amount of USD 2,138 thousand
which was incurred until registration of PPS in Lithuania and, theréfore, was not recovered from the state budget. Following
advice of its lawyers the Company rejected these claims as ungrounded. In 2003, the Company received a repeated claim
from PPS in the total amount of USD 2,900 thousand which also included accumulated late payment of interest of USD 662
thousand and PPS Pipeline Systems branch office costs of USD 100 thousand. Furthermore, in 2003 PPS Pipeline Systems
submitted an additional claim of USD 646 thousand to the Company for the exira works reimbursement according to the Oil
Terminal confract, The dispute over the recovery of VAT first arose in 1997 and despite many threats, arbitration
proceedings have still not been initiated by PPS.

The management believes that it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the above
obligation, therefore the provision was recognised in the congolidated financial statements of the Group.

{c) Environmental obligations :
As at 31 December 2006 provisions for environmental obligations consist of the provisions recognised by the Company
amounting to USD 3,717 thousand or 1.TL. 9,777 thousand (2005: USD 10,807 thousand or LTL 31,449 thousand) and

contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination amounting to USD 370 thousand or L'TL 1,30¢ thousand {2005;
1USD 515 thousand or LTL 1,500 thousand) (Note 32).

In the production process the oil refinery causes contamination. A provision was recognised for the costs to be incurred for
the treatment of the waste which was accumulated before the end of 2006, According to the waste freatment pian agreed with
the Ministry of Environment of the Republic of Lithuania, the Group is required to ciean up all contamination that it causes
before 2012. it is expected that the provision of USD 1,885 thousand or LTL 4,958 thousand will be used after 2007, The
remaining amount of USD 1,832 thousand or LTL 4,819 thousand will be used in 2007. In 2006 the Group reduced its
provision for environmental obligations by USD 8,344 thousand or LTL 23,168 thousand due to the changes in estimates of
the expenses to be incurred for cleaning up the contamination caused by the oil refinery.

As at 31 December 2005 a reimbursernent for environmental obligations receivable from the Government of USD 10,807
thousand or LTL 31,44% thousand was recognised in the consolidated financial statements {(Note 11). According to the
Investment Agreement signed between the Company, the Government and Williams International Company (replaced by
Yukos Finance B.V.) the Government committed itself to compensate all losses to the strategic investor and the Company
incurred before the privatisation. Tn 2006 the reimbursement was written off because after Yukos International UK B.V. sold
its shares in the Company to PKN ORLEN, the Investment Agreement expired and the Government is not liable for
compensation of expenses incurred by the Group in relation o environmental obligations.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination amounting to USD 570 thousand or LTL 1,300 thousand as at 31
December 2006 (2005: USD 515 thousand or LTL 1,500 thousand) were recognised for the comiamination caused by
MaZeikiy Elektring AB. It is expected that the whole provision will be used after 2007. According to the waste treatment
plan agreed with the Minisiry of Environment of the Republic of Lithuania, MaZeikiy Elektriné AB is required to clean up all
contamination that it causes before 2011,
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21. Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

(d) Penalty imposaed by the Competition Council

Tn July 2004, the Lithuanian Competition Council commenced an investigation against the Company to determine whether
the higher price of fuel in Lithuania is the result of violations and abuse of its dominant position in the market. The
investigation resulted from the fact that the prices of fuel in Lithuania are higher than those in Latvia and BEstonia, despite the
fact that with effect from May 2004 -all three- countries have unified fuel excise and customs duties. The investigation was
completed in fuly 2005. The Lithuanian Competition Council concluded that the Company abused its dominant position in
the Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia market of petrol and diesel in 2002 — 2004. The Lithuanian Competition Council obligated
the Company to terminate the activities violating the laws of the Republic of Lithuania and European Union and imposed a .

penalty of LTL 32,000 thousand on the Company. In 2006 the Company paid the penalty v full.

The Company has appealed the decision of the Competition Council in court. As at the date of the issuance of these

consolidated financial statements, no final decision was taken by the court.

22. Expenses by nature

2006 2005
UsD LTL USDh LTL

Depreciation and amortisation Notes 7 and 8) 47,664 131,778 39,0698 108,429
Wages and salaries 61,915 170,184 57,873 160,939
Social security costs : ' 18,985 52,198 17,658 49 098
Costs of crude oil, feedstock and other inventory 3,780,994 10,365,687 3,279,596 9,197,847
Additives and catalysts 5,399 14,958 7,192 19,969
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in
progress 26,884 129,900 (102,373) {338,935)
Transit and freight 73,689 204,021 80,933 225,738
Railway services 48,924 134,830 56,736 157,128
Electricity 34,197 93,952 33,631 93,041
Terminal and laboratory services 26,230 72,317 30,520 84,398
Steam power - - 11,014 29,735
Consumables and office supplies 15,510 42,689 15,446 43,086
Professional fees . . 14,461 39.473 6,282 17,639 .
Intermediary services 13,917 38,572 15,840 44,089
Change in provision for impairment of receivables 11,304 30,856 (108) {313)
Insurance 7,904 21,658 7,449 20,658
Taxes, other than corporate income tax 7,759 21,326 8,302 - 22,773
Operating lease 7,691 21,109 7,190 19,985
Change in provision for environmental obligations (Note 21} (7,689) (20,848) - -
Long-term employee benefits 643 1,720 3,233 9,205
Reversal of impairment charge of PP&E (Note 7) (82) (219) {1,528) (4,061
Provision for penalty imposed by the Competition Ceuncil - - 11,044 32,000
Chaage in provision for inventory - - 3,161 8,944
lmpairment charge of PP&E - - 1,694 4,686
Other expenses 57,169 156,021 36,321 101,662

4,253 468 11,722,182 3,626,204 10,107,760
Classified as:
~ cost of sales 3,977,032 10,960,665 3,336,777 9,302,596
— selling and marketing costs 187,013 516,210 206,075 572,270
- administrative expenses 89,423 245 307 83,352 232,894

4,253 468 11,722,182 3,626,204 10,107,760
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23 Other income

2006 20058
UsD LTI Usb LTL
Income from sale of emission allowances 13,415 35,937 - -
Insurance reimbursement - - 441 1,274
Other 1,268 - 3532 550 1,465
14,683 39,469 991 2,739

Income from sale of emission allowances represent income received from sale of 1,570,000 carbon dioxide emission

allowances received from the Government {ree of charge.

24 Finance income

2006 2005
UsDh LTL USD LTL
Interest mcome 26,702 73,363 14,854 41,633
Foreign exchange transaction gains 12,637 34,292 - -
36,339 107,655 14,854 41,633
25 Finance costs
2006 2005
Ush LTL UsD LTL
Inferest expense:
— borrowings 31,549 86,755 28,605 79,450
— finance lease 6 17 30 84
31,555 86,772 28,635 79,534
Foreign exchange fransaction losses - - 3,185 8,670
Other finance costs : . - 20 53
31,535 86,772 31,840 88,257
26 Income tax expense
2006 2005
USDh LTL UsD LTL
Current tax ' 16,502 47,479 48,949 135,297
Deferred tax (Note 20) {15,209 (41,2503 {4,247) (16,59%
1,293 6,229 44702 - 118,698
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26 Income tax expense (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate applicable to the
Company:

2006 2005
Usp LTL Usp LTL
Profit before income tax 69,154 203,304 363,425 1,004,412
Tax calculated at 19%6 (2005: 15%) 13,139 38,628 54,514 150,662
Effect of different tax rates in other counfries (145) {399) (370) (983)
Effect of changes in tax rates (1,785) {4,914) - -
Non-taxable exchange gains ' (13,741) (37,613) (2,513) (6,450}

Exchange differences related 0 prior periods for which deferred

meome tax was created (4,549) (17,200}

Income not subject to tax (496} (1,366) (221) {549

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7,559 20,798 2,609 0,842

Capital investment relief (2,667) (7,3373 {4,355} (12,438)

Charity expenses deductible twice for tax purposes (660} (1,817) (774} {2,145}

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (475) (1,306} (4933 (1,426)

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was

recognised 230 633 854 2,385

Income tax on dividends paid 335 922 - -

Tax charge 1,293 6,229 44,702 118,698

The Company’s taxable profit is determined in Lithuanian Litas. Non taxable exchange gains relate to impact of the changes
in foreign exchange rates on assets and liabilities of the Group which are measured in US dollars for financial reporting
purpeses and in Lithuanian Litas for tax purposes.

According to the Investment Agreement signed on 29 October 1999 between the Company, the Government and Williams
International Company (from 19 September 2002 replaced by Yukos Finance B.V.), which was valid until 15 December
2006 when Yukos International UK. B.V. sold its shareholding in the Company to PKN ORLEN, the Company could reduce
its taxable profits by the capital investment relief. The Investment Agreement guaranteed that starting from 29 October 1999
for a period of 10 vears the portion of taxable profit of the Company utilised for investment in property, plant and equipment
will be taxed at a corporate profit tax rate of § percent. In 2006 the Group recognised capital investment relief for the period
from 1 January 2006 to 15 December 2006, Uncertainties relating to certain provisions of the Investment Agreement based
on the Constitutional Court decision are described in Note 30,

Corporate income tax in Lithuania increased from 15% in 20035 to 19% in 2006, In 2005, the Law on Social Tax was
adopted, which provides that the tax base for this tax is taxable profit calculated in accordance with the procedure stipulated
in the Lithuanian Law on Corporate Profit Tax. Social tax rates are set at 4% for 2006 and 3% for 2007. The Group treats
the social fax as an increase In corporate income tax rate because this tax is calcuiated using the same base as for the
corporate income tax. :
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27 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic sarnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable {o equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the vear.

2006 2005
USD LTL Usp LTL
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company £5,996 192,058 319,478 887,764
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(thousands) 707,469 707,469 707,454 707,454
Basic earnings per share (USD or LTL per share) 0.093 0.271 0.452 1.255
Diluted

The Company does not have potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

28 Dividends per share

No dividends in respect of 2005 were declared. At the Annual General Sharcholders® meeting on 29 April 2005, a dividend
in respect of 2G04 of LTL 0.35 per share equivalent to USI3 0,131 per share amounting o a total dividend of LTL 247,609
thousand (USD 92,671 thousand) were declared.

29 Cash generated from operations

20066 ) 2005
Usp LTL Usp LTL
Profit for the period 67,861 197,075 318,723 885,714
Adjustments for:
— tax (Note 26) 1,293 6,229 44,702 118,598
— depreciation (Note 7) 46,109 127,500 37,711 104,581
- amortisation {Note 8) . 1,555 47278 1,387 3,848
— (profit) on sale of non-current assets classified as held for sale (577) (892) (n 2}
- (profit) on sale of PPE (670) {1,852) (172) {462}
— retirement of PPE (Note 7) : 220 603 2,548 6,995
—reversal of impairment charge of PPE (Note 7) (82) 219 (1,528) (4,061)
— impairment charge on PPE (Note 7) - - 1,694 4,686
— interest income (Note 24) C(26,702) {73,363} (14.854) (41,633)
— interest expense (Note 25) 31,555 86,772 28,635 79,534
— net moverment in provisions for liabilities (Note 21) (18,952) ©(53,091) 22,051 63,445
— share of (profif) of associates {Note 10) {(63) (179} {163) (286}
- Excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net assets acquired
recognised as income (Note 32) - - {104} (278)
— exchange (gains)/losses on borrowings 324 (127,854} (626) 180,392
Changes in working capital:
— inventories (91,299) (168,211) {56,922) {247,343)
— trade and other receivables 63,141 210,135 (12,556) {90,251)
—trade and other payables - {35,362) {205,693) 128,401 475,070
Cash generated from operations 38,349 1,236 495,986 1,538,651

Non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2006 the main non-cash transaction was issuance of the Company’s shares with the fair

value of USD 5,275 thousand or LTL 13,875 thousand as the purchase consideration for the acquisition of shares in subsidiary
{Notes 15, 32).
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30. Contingencies
Claim from Kievo Lapas UAB

In 2003, based on a decisicn of the Competition Council, stating that the Company did not comply with the Competition Law
and which allows the customers affected by the Company’s pricing policy to claim damages from the Company, legal
proceedings initiated by Klevo Lapas UAB against the Company in 2000 were renewed and the Court appointed an
independent expert committee to evaluate the possible amounts of damages caused to Klevo Lapas UAB. As at 31 December
2006, the claim from Klevo Lapas UAB amounted to LTL 7,451 thousand (equivalent to USD 2,833 thousand as at 31
December 2006). As at 31 December 2006 the Company had a receivabie from Kievo Lapas UAB amounting to LTL 5,298
thousand (equivalent of USD 2,014 thousand as at 31 December 2006), which was provided in full. As at the date of the
issuance of these consolidated financial statements the expertise was not completed. The management does not expect that
the final amount of this claim will exceed the amount receivable from Klevo Lapas UAB, therefore, no provision for the
claim was made in the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2006 (2003 nil).

Paymeni requesi from a group of inventors

The Company had received a payment request from a group of individuals in the amount of LTL 14,000 thousand
(equivalent to USD 5,322 thousand as at 31 December 2006) related to a production improvement process invented and
patented by the group and subsequently implemented by the oil refinery covering the period 1996 — 2001. Managsment does
not agree that the implementation of the invention did actually improve the outpui of production process and, thersfore,
rejected the payment request. In 2003, one of the inventors initiated legal proceedings against the Company and claimed an
amount- tetalling LTL 400 thousand (equivalent to USD {52 thousand as at 31 December 2006}. The first instance court
rejected the claim as ungrounded in February 2006, The inventor appealed against the decision of the court. Management
believes that the charges are without merit and, accordingly, no accrual for this contingent lability has been made in these
consolidated financial statements.

Claim from Rietumu Banka AS

In 1999, the Company received a claim from Rietumu Banka AS for the total amount of USD 1,250 thousand reiated to
unperformed sales of oil products to Thornleigh Trust Ltd. in accordance with the agreement signed on 23 March 1998 with
Rietumnu Banka AS and Thornleigh Trust Ltd. The Compapy set-off the advance payment of USD 1,250 thousand received
from Thornleigh Trust Lid. against the receivable balance outstanding and did not perform the shipment of products,
Management has taken legal advice and believes that the claim is without merit, therefore, no provision for the claim amount
was made in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 {2005: nil}.

Other litigations and claims

The Group is involved in other litigations and has claims against it for the matters arising in the ordinary course of business,
which have not been described above, In the opimion of the management, the outcome of these claims will not have a
material adverse sffect on the Group’s operations.

Decision of the Constitutional Court of the Republic of Lithuania

On 18 QOctober 2000, the Constitutional Court of the Republic of Lithuania concluded that certain provisions of the Law of
the Republic of Lithuania on Reorganization of Public Companies Bitingés Nafta AB, MaZeikiy Nafta AB and Naftotiekis
AB, which entitled the Government :0 assume, on behalf of the State, major property-related obligations to the strategic
investor and (or) MaZeikiy Nafta AB, contravened the Constitution of the Republic of Lithuania. The Constitutional Court
concluded that the provision in the Law on compensation of losses to the strategic investor and MaZeikiy Nafta AB is
formulated in such a way that the State would have an obligation to compensate from the State budget even if the losses were
incurred due to the fauit of the strategic investor Williams International Company and (or) MaZeikiy Nafta AB, and thus
contradicts the Constitution of the Republic of Lithuania.
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30. Contingencies (continued)

The Investment Agreement signed on 29 October 1999 between the Cornpany, the Government and Williams International
Company (from 19 September 2002 replaced by Yukos Finance B.V.) established that the Government undertook to ensure
the economic conditions for the Company’s operations (Le. laws and other legal acts of the Republic of Lithnania) will not
be changed in a manner that would adversely affect or impede implementation of the Management Plans of the Company
until the later of the termination of the Management Agreement, the Shareholders’ Agreement or the Financing Agreements
(as such Management Plans and agreements defined in contractual documentation signed by the parties). The strategic
investor and/or the Company can claim compensation from the Government for any losses incurred due to the Government’s
failure to ensure these matters. In addition, under the provisions of the Investment Agreement the Company is indemnified
by the Government from certain obligations and losses, if any, arising from the coniingencies that wers present when the
agreement was signed. In 1999 and 2000, the Company received LTL 140,000 thousand (USD 35,000 thousand) as crude oil
interruption compensation. In 2001 and 2002, the Company received LTL 33,431 thousand (USD 8,671 thousand) under the
provisions of the Investment Agreement for indemnification from certain obligations and losses. In accordance with the
amendments made to the Investment Agreement as at 8 July 2003, the provision allowing the Company the unilateral right of
set off of amounts receivable from the Government with the amounts payable to the Government was abolished. The
Investment Agreement was valic unti] 15 December 2006.

The management of the Company believes that the Company will not have to repay compensations recelved, therefore no
provision has been established in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: nil).

Dispute with Klaipédos nafta AB over surplus balance af oil products

The Company is a sole exporter of light oil products via a terminal owned by Klaipédos nafta AB. In 2006 during a stocktake
at the terminal, a surplus balance of light oil products comprising 28,793 tons (2005: 26,239 tons), which was accumulated
during 1999- 2006 was identified. The surplus would amount to USD 15,230 thousand or LTL 40,061 thousand at year-end
oil products prices. The Company claims that all surplus of light oil products and share of heavy fuel oil is the ownership of
the Company. However, the agreement between the parties was not reached and the Company has not recognised its share of
the surplus balance as an asset as at 31 December 2006 (2005: nif).

Guarantees under waste treatment plans

As required by waste treatment plans approved by the Ministry of Environment of the Republic of Lithuania in 2004, the
banks on behalf of the Company issued guarantees to the regional departments of the Ministry of Environment for a total
amaount of LTL 11,979 thousand (equivalent to USD 4,551 thousand as at 31 December 2006) (2005: USD 4,113 thousand).
Guarantees are valid until 2 December 2007, Payments under these guarantees should be made in cases when the Company
is unable to continue treatment of waste accumulating in production process. In the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2006 the Group made a provision for the environmental obligations amounting to USD 4,287 thousand or LTL
11,277 thousand (2005: USD 11,322 thousand or LTL 32,949 thousand) (Note 21).

Emission allowances

The Group participates in a carbon diexide cap and trade scheme. In 2005 the Group was set a target by the Government to
reduce its emissions of carbon dioxide to 6,622,887 tong (the cap) in 2005 - 2007. The Group is issued allowances equal in
number to its cap by the Government. Allowances are issued free of charge. Allowances obtained at ne cost are recorded at a
zero basis by the Group. In addition, in 2005 through the business combination the Group acquired allowances to emit
2,651,020 tons of carbon dioxide in 2003 - 2007 (Note 32). The management believes that the actual emission of carbon
dioxide will not exceed the allowances received therefore no accrual for additional costs was established in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: nil).

Tax audits

No full-scope tax audits were carried out by the tax authorities at the Company for the years 2001-2006. The tax authorities
may at any {ime inspect the books and records within 5 years subsequent to the reported tax year, and may impose additional
tax assessments and penalties. The Group’s management is not aware of any circumstances which may give rise to a potential
material liability in this respect.
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31. Commitments
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yetincwred is as follows:
2006 2005

UsSb LTL Usp LTL

Property, plant and equipment 65,202 171,507 44,002 128 055

3Z. Acquisitions
Business combinations
There were no business combinations in the year ended 31 December 2006,

On 12 October 2005 the Group acquired 85.72% of the share capital of MaZeikiy Elektriné AB, & company involved
manufacture, supply and distribution of eleciricity and thermal energy. The acquired business contributed revenues of USD 33
thousand or LTL 96 thousand and incurred net loss of USD 1,598 thousand or LTL 4,536 thousand tothe Group for the period
from 1 October 2005 fo 31 December 2005 (after elimination of intragroup transactions). If the acquisition had occurred on i
January 2005, the Group’s revenue would have been USD 4,005,829 thousand or LTL 11,156,771 thousand, and profit for the
vear would have been USD 317,221 thousand or LTL 881,547 thousand. These amounts have been calculated using the
Group’s accounting policies and by adjusting the results of the subsidiary to reflect the additional depreciation and
amortisation that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment, infangible
assets and inventory had applied from 1 January 2003, together with the consequential tax effects.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as foliows:

UsSD ETL
Purchase consideration - cash paid 6,198 17,800
Fair value of net assets acquired {4,769) (13,695
Goodwill (Note 9) 1,429 4,105

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise aftér the Group’s acquisition of MaZeikiu Elekiriné AB.

The assets and Habilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value Acquiree’s carrying amount

Uuso - LTL Usp LTL
Cash and cash equivalents 465 1,334 463 1,334
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) 7,714 22,135 13,203 37,918
Licences and software : _ _ - - 19 55
Inventories 3,351 9,623 ) 2,992 8,591
Trade and other receivables 2,114 6,073 2,114 6,072
Prepaid current income tax 35 157 35 157
Borrowings (1,7%7) {4,932) (1,717} (4,932)
Trade and other payables (5,897) {16,933 (5,897 (16,933)
Provisions for Habilities and charges (Note 21) {522) (1,500) - -
Net assets 5,563 15,977 11,234 32,262
Minority interest (14.28%) (794) (2,282)
Net assets acquired 4,769 13,695
Purchase consideration seftled in cash 6,198 17,800
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired {465} (1,334)
Cash outflow on acquisition 5,733 16,466
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32. Acquaisitions (continued)

The fair values of property, plant and equipment were determined based on the valuations of assets performed by the
mndapendent valuators,

Through the above business combination the Group acquired allowances to emit 2,651,020 tons of carbon dioxide in 2005 —
2007, These allowances (intangible assets) with the fair value at the date of acquisition of USD 74,279 thousand or L'TL 213,322
thousand and the related liabilities for the actual emissions made until the date of acquisition with the fair value of USD 5,503
thousand or LTL 16,953 thousand at the date of acquisition were not recognised in the balance sheet of the Group.

Acguisition of share in subsidiary

On 28 December 2006, the Company acquired 14.28% of shares in its subsidiary MaZeikiy Elekiriné AB from the minority
shareholders increasing its cwnership to 100%. On 28 December 2006 the Company merged with MaZeikiy Elektriné AB and
MaZeikiy Elekiring AB was liquidated.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

USD LTL
Purchase consideration — fair value of shares issued (Note 13) 5,275 13,875
Carrying value of net assets acquired (2,568) (6,755)
Goodwill (Note 9) 2,707 7,120

In March 2005, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Uotas UAB increased its ownership in the subsidiary Ventus Nafta
AR by 2.32% from 95.2% to 97.52%.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

USD LTL
Purchase consideration:
~ cash paid for shares issued 136 362
- fair value of other assets given 227 605
Total purchase consideration 363 567
Carrying value of net assets acquired ' 81 216

Goodwill (Note 9) 444 1,183

fn October 2003, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Uotas UAB increased its ownership in the subsidiary Ventus
Nafta AB by 1.07% from 97.52% to 98.59%,.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwili are as follows:

Usb LTL
Purchase consideration — fair value of assets given _ 114 326
Carrying value of net assets acquired (109 (313)
Goodwill (Note 9) 5 13

In April 2005, the Company acquired 40% of shares in its subsidiary Juodeikiy Nafta UAR from the minority shareholders
increasing its ownership to 100%.
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32. Acquisitions (continued)

Details of net assets acquired and excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net assets acquired over cost are as follows:

Purchase consideration — cash paid
Carrying value of net asséts acquired
Excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net assets acquired

USD LTL
208 554
(312) (832)
(104) (278)

Excess of the acquirer's intersst in the net assets acquired amounting to USD 104 thousand or LTL 278 thousand was

recognised in the income statement inmediately.

33. Related-party transactions

Until 15 December 2006 Yukos International UK B.V was the majority shareholder of the Company. According to the
provisions of the Investment Agreement, Yukos Finance B.V. had management control rights over the Company. As at 31
December 2006 PKN ORLEN was the majority shareholder of the Company after it acquired the majority of shares of the
Company on 15 December 2006 {Note 1). The Polish State Treasury is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.

Petroval SA Is an entity related to the Yukos Group.

Naftelf UAB is an associated company, where the Company holds 34 percent of the shares. The Group sells jet fuel to Naftelf

UAB.

The Government has significant infivence over the Company. For the purposes of the related party disclosure the Government

includes state anthorities and excludes local authorities.
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales of goods and services

- Naftelf UAB

— Yukos Group* (related until 15 December 2006)

— Petroval SA (related until 15 December 2006)

— PEKN ORLEN Group®* (related from 15 December 2006)

(b} Purchases of goods and services

— Petroval SA (related until 15 December 2006)

- Yukos Group* (purchase of crude oil) (related until 15

December 2006)

— Yukos Finance B.V. (management fee) (related until 13
- December 2006)

2006 2005
USD LTL USD LTL
30,229 82,910 23,584 65,809
29 81 40 108
. . 124,264 351,142
309 829 - -
30,567 83,820 147,888 417,059
2006 2005
USD LTL USD LTL
115 312 1,512 4,214
- - 896 2,356
4,040 10,967 1,458 4,049
4,155 11,279 3,866 10,619
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(ali tabular amounts are in USD’006 and LTL'0CG0 unless otherwise stated)

33. Related-party transactions (continued)

(¢} Domestic iax expenses — the Government

Domestic income tax
Domestic taxes, other than income tax
Social security costs

(d} Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

2006 2005
USD LTL USD LTL
34 2,767 44,000 116,660
7,576 20,825 8,210 22,521
18,579 51,084 17,336 48,203
26,189 74,676 69,546 187,384
2006 2005
USD LTL USD LTL
862 2,355 554 1,846

Key menagement includes 7 (2003: 7) members of the management of the Company.

(e} Acquisition of subsidiary

On 12 October 2005 the Group acquired 85.72% of the share capital of Mazeikiy Elektrine AB from the Government (Note 32).

1f) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of goods/services

Receivables from related parties (Note 13):

Yukos Group* trade receivables (related until 15 December
2006)
L ess provision for impairment of receivables

Yukos Group* trade receivabies — net (related until 15
December 20066}

Peiroval SA (related until 135 December 2006)

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (related from 15
December 2006)

PKN ORLEN Group** (related from 15 December 2006)

Naftelf UAB

Reimbursement for environmental obligations receivable
from the Government (Note 11)

2006 2005
USD LTL USD LTL
- - 2,162 6,292
- - (2,159 (6,284)
- - 3 8
- - 147 428
186 489 ; ;
690 1,816 . -
29 76 701 2,040
905 2381 851 2,476
- - 10,807 31,449
905 2.381 11,658 33,925
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(all tabular amounts are in USD’'000 and LTL 000 unless otherwise stated)

33. Related-party transactions (continued)

Amounts due to related parties (Note 18):

2006 2005
Amounts payable to related parties: USD LTL Usp LTL
Yukos Finance B.V., {related until 15 December 2006) - - 320 931
Petroval SA (related until 15 December 2006} - - 350 1,019
Polski Koncern Nafiowy ORLEN S AL (related from 15
December 2006) 66 174
PRN ORLEN Group** (related from 15 December 2006) 9 23 - -
Naftelf UAB 56 147 - -
the Government 15 40 16 47
146 384 686 1,997
Provisien for ¢laim from Yukos Group* (related until 15
December 2006) (Note 21) - “ 571 1,662
Government grant relating to purchases of PPE (Note 17) 4,063 13,055 4,963 14,443
3,109 13,439 6,220 18,102
{g) Year-end balances arising from domestic taxes patd/payable — the Government
Prepaid domestic taxes: 2006 2005
USD LTL UusD LTL
Prepaid domestic current income fax 53,630 141,068 165 480
Long term portion of prepayment for domestic real estate tax
{Note 11) - - 1,134 3,360
Prepaid domestic taxes, other than income tax 2,435 6,405 2,739 7,971
56,065 147,473 4,038 11,751
Domestic taxes payable: 2006 2605
usp LTL Usp LTL
Domestic current incoms tax payable 1,573 4,138 36,636 106,618
Domestic taxes other than income tax 25,695 67,588 26,186 76,206
Social security contributions 1,887 4,964 2,776 8,079
29,155 76,650 65,598 190,903
Deferred taxes: 2006 2605
Usp LTL Usn LTL
Deferred income tax assets 35,972 94,621 20,841 60,651

(h) Year-end balances arising from taxes paid/payable — the Polish Government (related from 15 December 2006)

2006 2005
Usb LTL USDh LTL
Prepaid taxes, other than income tax 65 171 - -
Taxes payable other than income fax 12,501 32,883 - -
Deferred income tax assets 66 174 - -

55



MAZEIKIU NAFTA AB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

(all tabular amounts are in USD’000 and LTL’000 unless otherwise stated)

33. Related-party transactions (continued)

(i) Loans from related parties — the Government (Note 19)

2006 2005
USD LTL Usp LTL
Beginning of year 290,487 843,376 288,983 732,427
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 32) - - 1,717 4,932
Interest charged 20,578 56,599 20,525 57,235
Interest paid (20,546) {56,511) (20,603) (57,443)
Loan repayments made (258) (695) : (113) {329}
Exchange differences 126 (80,9353 (22) 108,559
End of the year 290,387 763,834 290,487 845376

Loans from related parties consist of loans granted by the Government fo the Company amounting to USD 288,927 thousand
or LTL 759,994 thousand {2003: USD 288,927 thousand or LTL 840,837 thousand) and MaZeikiy Eleliriné AB amounting
to USD 1,445 thousand or LTL 3,841 thousand (2005: USD 1,544 thousand or LTL 4,492 thousand} plus interest accrued
amounting to USD 13 thousand or LTL 39 thousand (2005: USD 16 thousand or LTL 47 thousand). After the Company
merged with MaZeikiy Elekiring AB on 28 December 2006, the loan granted by the Government to MaZeikiy Elekiriné AB

was transferred to the Company,

An interest of 7 percent per annum (2005: 7 %) is payable on the loan granted by the Government to the Company. Loan has

to be repaid by 11 July 2013. The first instalment is due in 2009,

An interest of 4.95 percent per anmum (2005 4.95 %) is payable on the loan granted by the Govemment to MaZeikiy

Eleictring AB. Loan has to be repaid by 15 April 2011,

*Yukos Oil Company OAQ, Yukos Finance B.V., Yukos Export Trade 000, Samaraneftegas OACQ are treated as the Yukos

(Group companies.

**(rlen Gaz Sp.z.o.0., ORLEN PetroCentrum Sp.z.0.0., ORLEN Morena Sp.z.0.0. are treated as PKN ORLEN Group

companies.
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The year 2006 was significant as well as historical for AB Mazeikiu Nafta (hereinafter - the
Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter jointly — the Group) due to the management, organizational
and operational changes.

Ownership changes

On December 14, 2006, Polski Koncern Naftowy Orlen SA (hereinafter - PKN ORLEN) acquired
379,918,411 shares from Yukos International UK BV, with subsequent acquisition of 216,915,941
shares from the Government of the Republic of Lithuania on December 15, 2006, this way becoming
entitled to 84.36 per cent of the total number of shares of the Company. The number of shares owned
by the Government of the Republic of Lithuania then amounted to 10.0 per cent, while the remaining
portion of shares were held by the minority shareholders of the Company.

Upon closing of the transaction for transfer of the Company shares to PKN ORLEN and acquisition of

shares granting more than 40 per cent of all votes in the Company’s General Meeting of Shareholders, -

the Mandatory Takeover Bid was announced by PKN ORLEN on Pecember 22, 2006, for purchase of
ail shares of the Company traded publicly on the Vilnius Stock Exchange.

Based on the Terms of Reorganization prepared on October 28, 2006, AB Mazeikiu Nafta and AB
Mazeikiy elekiringé have been reorganized pursuant to Article 2.97(3) of the Civil Cede of the
Republic of Lithuania by way of merger of AB MaZeikiy elektriné, wound up as a legal person after
reorganization, into AB Mazeikiu Nafta continuing its activities after reorganization. After
reorganization closing on December 28, 2006, the authorized capital of the Company was increased
from LTL 707,454,130 to LTL 708,821,122, Upon exchange of the shares issued by AB Mazeikiy
elektring for the shares of AB Mazeikiu Nafta, continuing its activities after reorganization, at the
exchange ratio of 0.859757 share of AB Mazeikiu Nafta against 1 share issued by AB MaZeikiy
elektring, and allocation of the newly issued shares of AB Mazeikiu Nafta pursuant to the principles of
shares allocation provided for in the Terms of Reorganization, the shareholders of AB MaZeikiy
elektriné became entitied to 1,366,992 ordinary registered shares of AB Mazeikiu Nafta with a
nominal value of LTL 1 each.

After the reorganization PKN ORLEN became entitled to 84.2 per cent, the Government of the
Republic of Lithuania — to 9.98 per cent, and the minority shareholders — to 5.82 per cent of the shares
of the Company. Information on compliance of the Company’s govemance structure to the Corporate
Governance Code for Companies Listed on the National Stock Exchange is presented in Annex no.1 to
this Consolidated Annual Report.

Financial and operating results

The consclidated net profit of the Group in 2006 under the International Financial Reporting Standards
amounted to USD 67.9 million (LTL 197.1 million), while the consolidated net proﬁt of the Group for
the year 2005 was USD 318.7 million {LTL 885.7 miilion).

The revenues of the Group increased by 7.4 per cent reaching the total amount of USD 4.300 hillion
(LTL 11.865 billion) for the year 2006. Relatively weaker resuits of the Group, if compared to 2005,
had a respective impact on the changes of its financial indicators. Profitability indicators reduced, as
follows: the retum on assets was 0.04 USD/USD (0.20 USD/USD in 2005), and the return on equity
was 0.09 USD/USD (0.47 USD/USD in 2005). Changes of other indicators were, as follows: the long
term debt to equity ratio was 0.62 (0.70 in 2005}, the current ratio was 2.49 (2.27 in 2005), and the
asset turnover ratio was 2.71 {2.49 i 2005).

Notwithstanding the fire of 12th October 2006 which regarded to the Vacuum Distillation column of
the Vacuum Unit, the Company ended the year with profit. Working under the complicated conditions
the Company managed to produce high-quality products and satisfy the demand of its target markets.
Shortages that occurred due to the temporary reduction of the refining capacities of the Company have
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been covered by purchasing the products on the market; therefore no fuel deficit has been faced by the
Baltic market. Dynamics of profit in the year 2006, if compared to previous year, has changed:
everything what was granted by the market in 2005 was taken in 2006; therefore, the profit of the
Group after the fire significantly reduced.

The main reasons that had an impact on reduced net profit of the Group, if compared to the year 20053,
are as follows:

- reduction of the world refining margins and petroleum product prices in August-December 2006,

- interruption of crude oil supplies by pipeline since August 2006; crude oil import through Batinge
O1l Terminal is relatively more expensive if compared to the pipeline supplies. In addition, no
reverues have been received for crude oil transportation by pipeline and transshipment via Biitingeg Oil
Terminal (revenues of the Terminal reduced by 41.1 per cent if compared to the same period of 2005,
while reduction of revenues from- the pipeline transportation services amounted to 31.8 per cent year
of year);

- due to the consequences of the fire in October 2006, refining efficiency reduced followed by less
guantity of light petroleum products obtained from the crude oii refined. Management of the Company
set the following main tasks right after the fire and oriented at improvement of the situation:
refurbishment, within three months, of the vacuum tower in Bitumen Production Unit with the
capacity of the tower being twice less than that of KT 1/1 Complex {which was done by February 14"
2007), and rebuild of the damaged vacuum tower in KT 1/1 Complex until the end of 2007,

Sales of petroleum products by the Group in 2006 amounted to 7.963 million tons, compared to 8.511
miilion tons of petroleum products in 2065. Western Europe remained the largest market for the Group
with 39 per cent of the total sales volume (3.091 million tons). Other large markets for the Group
remained Lithuania (23 per cent) and the USA (16 per cent or 1.250 million tons}). Estonia and Latvia
each made for 7 per cent, while Poland made for 6 per cent of the total sales volume (566 thousand,
556 thousand, and 453 thousand tons respectively). The remaining 3 percent of sales {214 thousand
tong) came from Ukraine and Moldova.

The Group continued increase of petroleum products sales in the target markets. The amount of
petroleum products sold in Lithuanian market in 2006 was 1.834 million tons, i.e. increased by 4.9 per
cent versus 2005; the amount of petroleum products sold in 2006 in Latvian and Estonian markets was
1.122 mullion tons (increase by 3.2 per cent versus 2005). Increase of the sales in such markets
witnesses the confinued dynamic sales policy implemented by Mazeikin Nafta, active sales i
cooperation with the largest as well as minor clients, pursuit of the strategic objectives of the
Company, recognition of petroleum products by such markets and increasing demand for higher
quality, taking into consideration the growing attention of society to the environmental issues and,
consequently, the stricter quality requirements.

In 2006 the fuel stations of the Group operating under a single brand VENTUS sold 72.9 million liters
of fuel, i.e. increase by 46 per cent versus 2005. Sales by the shops operating within the chain
increased by 32.5 per cent if compared to the year 2005, Revenues of AB Ventus-Nafta from the main
activities amounted to USD 47.2 million, and increased by 50.4 per cent if compared to the year 2005,
The main reasons for such revenue increase were increased volumes of fuel sold and higher fuel
prices.

Sales increase was also due to the flexible discount system applied to the chain customers, sales
supporting promotions, dynamic activities of the card department in aftracting new corporate
customers and advertising the benefits offered..

Business activities of the Group are closely related to the foreign markets; therefore the Company
faces challenges associated with the volatility of refining margins, prices of goods, rate of interest,
credit and currency associated risks. For this reason, risk management activity is being foilowed the
Group and based on the written risk management policies.

Highest standards of financial operations

As a measure of professional standards, the Group has engaged the international rating agency Fitch
Ratings. It is aimed at precise evaiuation of the risks of the Group, stability of its business
environment and perspectives, as well as achieving establishment of reasonable payment conditions in
terms of economics when concluding agreements with its suppliers and borrowing funds from banks,
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In September 2006 the agency assigned B+ long-term foreign currency credit rating and B short-term
rating to the Group. Despite the fire in Refinery, the agency bas not changed to AB Mazeikiu Nafta the
assigned rating of B+ on Rating Watch Positive and short-term rating at B. In Fitch Ratings’ view the
fire in the Company’s Refinery does not presently warrant a rating action as it is expected that the
Company shall substantially cover its reconstruction costs and business interruption losses via
insurance claims.

Aspect of crude supply and fire af refinery

Previously Company was receiving the crude oil for refining by pipelines through the territory of the
Russian Pederation; however the Company also had a possibility of importing crude oil through its
flexible import and export terminal in Bitinge. At the end of Juiy 2006, the Company faced
interruption of crude oil supplies by pipeline and started import of crude oil through its Oil Terminal.
Therefore crude oil costs relatively increased. Due to the fire of October 12, 2006, the refinery now is
operating approx. at half of its capacity. Based on assessments of the Company management, the total
period required for reinstatement of the previous capacities would be up to 12 months, that is, by the
end of 2007. As the Company has the property and business interruption insurance policies concluded,
the insurers are to cover the damaged property associated replacement costs as well as the fixed costs
incurred within business interruption period.

Modernization program

The Group also continued its activities under the second phase of Modernization Program. The total
amount of investments into the long-term and intangible assets during 2006 comprised a total of USD
114.9 million. The projects implemented in 2006 were mainly intended, as in the year 2005, for
ensuring the compliance of petroleum products with the EU clean fuel and emissions-regulating
requirements. :

The major part of investments was intended for implementation of the projects under Modernization
Program. Construction of new PRIME G+ Unit intended for hydrotreatment of catalytic cracking
gasoline was made at the intensive speed. Upon commissioning of this unit, sulfur content in all
gasoline made by the Company shall be less than 10 ppm, that is in accordance with EU standards.
The total investments for implementation of the FCC Gasoline Selective Hydrotreatment Unit in 2006
amounted to USD 18.1 million. The total amount of investments for completion of the project for
production of fuel with bio-components amounted approx. to USD 2 million; production of bio-
gasoline and bio-diesel was started in spring of 2006. The total amount of USD 8.4 million was spent
for modernization of Truck Loading Terminal for loading of light petroleum products. The amount
spent in 2006 on one of the biggest efficiency improvement projects — replacement of the heater in
Atmospheric Distillation Unit of LK-2 — comprised USD 16.2 million. The total amount of USD 24.6
million was spent on preparatory activities for modemization of KT 1/1 Complex.

In 2006 the Company has started considerable investments for upgrade of its process units and
liquidation of the consequences of fire in October 2006: refurbishment of the vacuum tower in
Bitumen Production Unit = USD 11.3 million, rebuild of the vacuum tower in KT 1/1 Complex -~ USD
2.9 million. The amount spent for replacement of Bitingé Terminal SPM and liguidation of the
consequences of the 29th December 2005 incident was USD 8.4 million, upgrading of crude oil tank
RZ21 — USD 1.2 million, and modifications of fuel oil tank — USD 1 million. In order to reduce the
risk of fuel losses, modern electronic fuel level system and video-monitoring system was introduced in
the tanks of fuel stations of AB Ventus-Nafta, the subsidiary of the Company, in 2006.

- Social and environmental responsibility

The Group employs 3,858 people. If compareé to the number of employees at the end of 2008, it
reduced by 125 people in the vear 2006.

On June 16, 2006, the Company and the Joint Representative Team of Trade Unions signed the new
Collective Agreement for the period ending on December 31, 2008.

The new Collective Agreement formalizes the continuity of the previous obligations of the Company
with respect to the compensation, social benefits and guarantees, establishes the arrangement on the

39



new labor market-oriented compensation policy based on the principles of internal equity and external
competitiveness. Following the above, the Company undertook to participate in the annual surveys of
Lithuanian labor market and ensure payment of base salaries not lower than the median of Lithuanian
labor market. Increase of the base salaries by Company wiil be based on the following major factors:
work efficiency, inflation level and labor market changes.

The Company dedicates special attention to employees’ qualification improvement and professional
training.

The Company has the ficense issued by the Ministry of Education and Science of the Republic of
Lithuania for vocational training of employees under 33 vocational education and training programs.
In 2006 Medical Center of the Company conducted the First Aid Training and Hygiene Training
courses. :

Taking into consideration the importance of vocational training and professional education the
Company allocated funds for establishment of the new modermn equipped Training Center opened m
2006. )

The Company was also one of the first business enterprises in Lithuania which started in 2005 and
continued in 2006 the implementation of projects financed from the EU structural funds according to
the SPG measure “Development of Labor Force Competencies and the Ability to Adapt to Changes”.
162 employees participated in the courses and sessions on business ethics, English language courses,
refining processes contro! and efficiency increase courses.

Individual groups of employees attended seminars and courses on project management, project
Jeadership, implementation of employees’ safety and health management system, improvement of the
skills of graphic documents preparation and other management and motivation associated subjects.

In 2006 the Refinery of AB Mazeikiu Nafta operated under the Integrated Pollution Prevention and
Control (IPPC) Permit issued under the requirements of Directive 96/61/EC under the “Reference
Document on Best Available Technigues for Mineral Oil and Gas Refineries”.

The Company also dedicates special attention to the environmental issues in its Bitinge Oil Terminal.
Starting the year 1999, with commencement of the Terminal operaticns, the Company introduced and
started implementation of Biltingé Terminal Monitoring Program. The program covers monitering of
sea and ground waters, seashore and seabed, as well as sea flora and fauna. The monitoring is
performed 4 times a year. Bitingé Oil Terminal puts all efforts for ensuring safety of crude oil loading
operations.

Bitingé Oil Terminal was the first port facility in Lithuania to have implemented the provisions of the
International Ship and Port Facility Security Code. The vessels serviced by the Terminal are applied
with strict environmental requirements — only vessels with segregated ballast water tanks containing
the Baltic Sea or the North Sea water may moor to the Terminal SPM.

In 2006 the Company implemented the following environmentai meéasures mitigating its possible
negative impact on the environment:

- New Vapor Recovery Unit was commissioned in the Petroleum Product Loading Terminal for
reduction of air pollution. Low NOx burner was installed in the Heater 20Kr-1 of Sulfur Production
Unit. 3,670 tons of oil sludge (accumulated earlier) were treated in the Company’s centrifuge.

- The 1st stage of petroleum products-contaminated ground water treatment was initiated.

- Section of 1.76 kilometers of the drinking water piping was replaced with polyethylene piping in the
territory of the Company, and Environmental Laboratory equipment changed.

Having secured its leading position in the Lithuanian economy, the Company also seeks to become a
leader in the area of social responsibility having positive influence on the Company’s business results
and improving quality of life of the Company's employees and their families, as well as communities
of Mazeikiai, Birzai and Palanga and the entire Lithuanian community. In 2006 the Company granted
financial support and sponsored a lot of valuable initiatives in line with the provisions of the
Company’s Social Policy.
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In June 2006, the Company being a member of Global Compact, the network of socially-responsible
business, together with other Lithuanian enterprises and organizations ~ members of the Global
Compact as well — signed Declaration acknowledging their commitment to honest and transparent
compensation policy, protection of employees’ rights, and respect for the national laws and
community.

Treasury shares
The Company has not acquired and is not in possession of its own shares. In 2006 the Company did not
acquire or transfer any of its own shares either.

Branches
The Company has no branches established. The Company has AB Mazeikiu Nafta Representative Office

in Ukraine.

PEN ORLEN - new shareholder with value orienied characier

On January 5, 2007, the Company signed the Agreement with PKN ORLEN granting PKN ORLEN
the exclusive right for the crude oil supply to the Company. The Agreement has been concluded for an
indefinite period, and its conclusion was associated with centralization of crude oil purchases in PKN
ORLEN Group,

One of the key initiatives of the new shareholder of the Group is the Value Creation Program which
was launched at the very beginning of 2007. The Program is intended for establishment of the strategy
and business directions of the Company and its Group going forward. The Program would - above
others - extract and build additional improvement of the Group’s management processes, cost
reduction, improvement and implementation of new processes and technologies to achieve the
ambitious objectives for the years to come.

Participants of the Program wiil generate new ideas which later on will be transformed by value
creation teams into the properly developed initiatives covering production and its development,
logistics, wholesale and retail, human resources management, procurement and cost control, IT,
finance management and other areas of he Group’s business.

Year 2007 - positive ventures ahead

With the commissioning and start-up of the refurbished vacuum tower in Bitumen Production Unit on
February 14, 2007, light petroleum products yield could possibly improve.

The forecasted throughput at the refinery for 2007 is 6.5 million fons of feedstock, with import
volumes through Bitingé Oil Terminal amounting to 5.8 miilion tons of crude oil, and transportation
volumes through BirZai pipeline reaching 6.8 million tons of diesel fuel in Ventspils direction, In 2007
the Company is planning reconstruction of some fuel stations of AB Ventus-Nafta and installation of
new car facilities, and increase sales volumes: fuel — by 21 per cent, and goods — by 15 per cent.

In 2007 the Company will continue implementation of the projects under its Modernization program,
-Upon implementation of such projects the Company is planning on further increase its refining
efficiency and profitability per ton of refined crude.

The Group will further pursue the goal of creating shareholder value by aiming to ackieve the
operational excellence in the spheres of crude refining, production, marketing, fogistics, and financial
management and organizational improvements, by becoming one of the most successful and efficient
oil companies in North East Europe.

Chairman of the Board P. Kownacki

22 March 2007 .
é(/u 1%
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Annex 1 to Annual Report of AB
Mazeikiu Nafta for the year 2006

Disclosure form concermning the
compliance with the Governance Code
for the companies listed on the regulated
market

The public company Mazetkiu Nafia, legal person’s code 1664531720, following Section 3 of Article 21 of the
Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Securities and item 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Vilnius Stock
Exchange {VSE), discloses its complance with the Governance Code, approved by the VSE for the companies
listed on: the regulated market, and its specific provisions. In the event of non-compliance with the Code or with
certain provisions thereof, it must be specified which provisions are not complied with and the reasons of non-

compliance.
YES/NO {
PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS MNOT COMMENTARY
APPLICABLE I

Principle It Basic Provisions

time shareholder value.

The overriding objective of a company should be to operate in common interests of ali the shareholders by optimizing over

1.1. A company should adopt and make public the
company’s development strategy and objectives by clearly
declaring how the company intends to meet the Interests of
its shareholders and optimize shareholder value.

The Company’s approved Management Plans defining
the Company’s development strategy are not in public
domain because, in order to retain the competitive
advantages, they have been included into the list of the
corporate commercial secrets in accordance Witk the
procedure established by the Articles of Association.

1.2, All management bodies of a company should act in
furtherance of the declared strategic objectives in view of
the need to optimize shareholder value.

Yes

All bodies of the Company act in implementation of the
business objectives provided for by the Company’s
Articles of Association,

1.3, A company’s supervisory and management bodies
should act in close ce-operation in order to attain maximum
benefir for the company and its shareholders.

Yes

The Company’s Board and CEO develop and
implement in close cooperation the Company’s process
technologies, plans of modemization of the process

units, and introducing more efficient business
management  methods/systemns;  the  Company’s

Supervisory Council supervises and evaluates the
activities of the management bodies, mmonitors the
Company’s financial situation.

1.4. A company’s supervisory and management bodies
should ensure that the rights and interests of persons other
than the company’s shareholders {e.g. employees, creditors,
suppliers, clients, local community), participating in or
connected with the cormpany’s operation, are duly respected.

Yes

The Company takes all reasonable actions to ensure
rights and interests of the shareholders, other persons
involved in or associated with the Company’s activiiies
{employees, creditors, supplers, clients, local
community) strictly in compliance with the principles
of law protecting them, terms and conditions of the
transactions concluded, being a member of the Global
Compact hoiding socially responsible companies,
granting financial support i accordance with the
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procedure established by applicable laws, etc.

protection of the shareholders’ interests.

Principle ¥: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure the strategic guldance of the company, the effective oversight of the
company’s management bodies, an appropriate balance and distribution of functions between the company’s bodies,

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in the Law on i Yes The Company complies with this recommendaiion; the

Companies of the Republic of Lithuania - a gensral | following bodies have been established in accordance

shareholders’ meeting and the chief executive officer, it is with the procedure defined in its Articles of

recommended that a company should set up both a collegial Association: the General Meeting Of Sharcholders, the

supervisory body and a collegial management bedy. The Supervisory Council, the Board, and the Company’s |

sefting up of collegial bodies for supervision and CEQ (General Director).

managernent facilitates clear separation of management and

supervisory functions in the company, accountability and

control on the part of the chief executive officer, which, in

its tum, facilitate a more efficient and transparent

management process,

2.2. A collegial management body is responsible for the | Yes The Company’s collegial management body — the

strategic management of the company and performs other Board - is-respensible for the strategic management of

key functions of corporate governance. A collegial the company and implements other key functions of the

supervisory body is responsible for the effective supervision corporate governance, and the collegial supervisory

of the company’s management bodies. body — the Supervisory Council - is responsible for
efficient supervision of the Company’s management
bodies.

2.3, Where a company chooses to form only one collegial | Not The Company has the Supervisory Council and the

body, it is recommended that it should be a supervisory body, | applicable Board.

i.e. the supervisory board. In such a case, the supervisory |

beard is responsible for the effective monitoring of the

functions performed by the company’s chief executive officer.

2.4, The collegial supervisory body to be elected by the | No Considering the reasons presented with regard to

general shareholders’ meeting should be set up and should act implementation of recommendations as per Principles

in the manner defined in Prnciples III and IV. Where a Hand IV.

compeny should decide not to set up a collegial supervisory’

body but rather a collegial management body, i.e. the board,

Principles I and IV should apply to the board as long as that

does not contradict the essence and purpose of this body,!

! Provisions of Principles [T and IV are more applicable to those instances when the general sharcholders’ meeting elects the
supervisory board, Le. a body that is essentially formed to ensure oversight.of the company’s board and the chief executive
officer and to represent the company’s sharcholders. However, in case the company does not form the supervisory beard but
rather the board, most of the recommendations set out in Principles III and IV become important and applicable to the board
as well. Furthermore, it should be noted that certain recommendations, which are in their essence and nature applicable
exclusively to the supervisory board, should not be applied to the board, as the competence and functions of these bodies
according fo the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Offfcial Gazeite, 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For
instance, item 3.1 of the Code concerning oversight of the management bodies applies to the extent it concerns the oversight
of the chief executive officer of the company, but not of the board itself; item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommendations
to the management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the provision of recommendations to the company's chief
executive officer; item 4.4 of the Code concerning independence of the collegial body elected by the general meeting from
the company’s management bodies is applied to the extent it concerns independence from the chief executive officer.
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2,5, Company’s management and supervisory bodies should
comprise such number of board {executive directors) and
supervisory {non-executive directors) board members that no
individual or small group of individuals can dominate
decision-making on the past of these bodies.?

Yes

The Company’s Board consists of seven (7) members,
ie. their number is two times the minimum number set
by Section 2 of Article 33 of the Law on Companies;
the Company’s Articles of Associafion alse provide for
the greater majority of votes required for adoption of
decisions than stipulated in Section 4 of Articls 35 of
the Law on Cempanies, Le. the number of voles “in
favor” shall constitute more than one half of the
members present at the meeting, except for the cases
when adoption of decisions with respect to approval of
certain draft decision: for sxample, approval of the
Company’s development projects, establishment of
other legal persons, acquisition of any interest in other
persons, providing loans, establishment or closing of
branches and representative offices, invéstment,
ransfer, acquisition of the high-value long-term assets
(the value exceeding 1/20 of the Company’s authorized
capital), epproval and amendment of the Work
Regulations of the Board, etc., requires at least five
members voting “in favor.”

The Company’s Supervisory Council consist of nine {9)
member, ie. their number is three times the minimum
number set by Section 2 of Article 31 of the Law on
Companies, which forms 3/5 of their maximum number
permitted; the Company’s Articles of Association also
provide for the greater majority of votes required for
adoption of decisions than stipulated i Section & of
Article 32 of the Law on Cornpanies, i.e. the number of
voles “in favor” shall constitute more than one haif of
the members present at the meeting, except for the

i cases when (i} submission of propesals to the Board or

the Company’s CEQG to revoke their adopted decisions
(i} adoption of the decision regarding approval/
disapproval of dismissal of the Company’s CEO and
CFO, or (iii) approval or amendment of the Work
Regulations of the Supervisory Council reguire that

more than one half of the member present at the

meeting vote “in favor”, bul not less than fowr
members; and decision on recalling of the member of
the Board is adopted if af least 2/3 of the members
present at the meeting vote in favor.

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the supervisory
board should be appointed for specified termms subject to
individual re-election, at maximum intervals provided for in
the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensuring necessary
development of professional experience and sufficiently
frequent reconfirmation of their status. A possibility to
remove them should aiso be stipulated however this
procedure should not be easier than the removal procedure for
an executive director or 2 member of the management hoard.

Yes

The term of the members of the Supervisory Council is
four (4) years. The Company's Articles of Association
and practices do not prohibit election of new members
(removal of the members before expiry of the term).

? Definitions ‘exacutive director’ and ‘non-executive director’ are used in cases when a company has only one collegial body.
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2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting may be & person whose current or past
office copstifufes no obstacle fo conduct independent and
impartial supervision, Where a company should decide not fo
set up a supervisory board but rather the bowd, it is
recommended that the chairman of the board and chief
exsoutive officer of the company should be a different person.
Former company’s chief executive officer should not be
immediately nominated as the chairman of the collegial body
elected by the general shareholders” meeting. When a
companty chooses to departure from these recommendations,
it should furnish information on the measures it has taken to
ensure impartiality of the supervision.

Yes

The Chairman of the Company’s Supervisory Council

{ has never acted as the Company’s CEO.

meeting

its management bodies.®

Principle ITi: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’

The order of the formation a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting should ensure representation of
minority shareholders, accountability of this bedy to the shareholders and objective monitoring of the cempany’s aperation and

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegial body to be
clected by a general sharcholders™ meeting (hereinafter in this
Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body™) should ensure
ohjective and fair monitoring of the company’s management
boedies as well as representation of minority shareholders.

The existing procedure for election of the Supervisory
Council members established by the Articles of
Association does not provide for mechanism of election
of independent members.

3.2. Names and sumames of the candidates to become
members of a collegial body, information about their
education, qualification, professional background, positiong
i taken and potential conflicts of interest should be disclosed
earty enough before the general shareholders’ meeting so that
the shareholders would have sufficient time t make an
informed voting decision. All factors affecting the candidate’s
independence, the sample list of which is set out in
Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed. The collegial
body should also be informed on any subseguent changes in
the provided information. The coliegial body sheuld, on
yearly basis, ceilect data provided in this #em on its members
and disclose this in the company’s annual report,

Disclosure of names and sumames of the candidates to
become Supervisory  Council,
information education, qualification,

members of the
about  their

. professional background, positions taken, other material

professional commitments and potential conflicts of
interest to the Company’s sharcholders before the
General Meeting of Shareholders is not always ensured.
There is no practice in the Company that all
circumstances (excluding such provided by applicable
laws) that may affect the candidate’s independence as

per the sample list set out in Recommendation 3.7 ;

should be disclosed and that the Supervisory Council
should be informed on any subsequent changes in-the
information provided. The Supervisory Council does
not collect and does not disclose the data of such nature
in the Company’s Annual Report.

3 Attention should be drawn to the fact that in the situstion where the collegial body eiected by the general sharehoiders’
meeting is the board, it is natural that being 2 management body it should ensure oversight not of all management bodies of
the company, but only of the single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer. This note shall

apply in respect of item 3.1 as well.
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3.3, Should a person be nominated for members of a collegial
body, such nomination should be followed by the disclosure
of information on candidate’s particular competences relevarnt
to hissher service on the collegial body. In order shareholders
and investors are able to ascertain whether member’s
competence i further relevant, the collegial body should, in
its annual report, disclose the information on its composition
and particular competences of individual members which. are
refevant to their servics on the collegial body.

No

Information on specific competences of individual
members  of the Supervisory Council which
competences are directly related to their service on the
collegial body is not disclosed in the Company’s
Annual Report as such obligation is not set by the
applicable legal acts and is mot govermed by the
Company’s administrative documents,

3.4. In order to maintain a proper balance in terms of the
current qualifications possessed by its members, the collegjal
the company’s structure and activities, and have this
it is composed of members who, as a whole, have the required
diversity of knowledge, judgment and experfence to complete
their tasks properly. The members of the audit committee,
collectively, should have a recent knowledge and relevant

experience in the fields of finance, accounting and/or audit for
the stock exchange listed companies.

body should determine its desired composition with regard to |

periodically evaiuated. The collegial body should ensure that

No

There are no practices applied in the Company that the

Supervisory Council of the Company establishes ifs
desired composition with regard fo the Company’s
structure and activities, and the respective periodic
evaluation is not conducted; the Company’s
Supervisory Council does not form the Andit

Committee.

1.5. All new members of the collegial bedy should be offered
a tailored program focused on introducing a member with
histher duties, corporate organization and activities. The
collegial body should conduct an annual review to identify
fields where its members need to update their skilis and
knowledge.

- No

The Company has no special programs focused on
introducing members of the Supervisory Council with
their duties, corporate organization and activities, The
Supervisory Council has not so far practiced annual
reviews to identify fields where its members need to
update their skills and knowledge.

3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicts of imterest
related with a2 member of the collegial body are resolved
property, the collegial body should comprise a sufficient’
number of iﬂdependentS members.

No

The Company does not follow this Recommendation
because the independence of the Supervisory Council
members has not been evaluated so far; the contents of
the “sufficient number” of independent members have
not been defined in the Company.

% The Code does not provide for a concrete number of independent members to comprise a collegial body. Many codes in
foreign countries fix a concrete number of independent members (e.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members of the collegial
body) to comprise the collegial body. However, having regard to the novelty of the institution of independent members in
Lithuania and potential problems in finding and electing a concrste number of independent members, the Code provides for a
more flexible wording and allows the comipanies themselves to decide what number of independent members is sufficient. Of
course, a larger number of independent members in a collegial body is encouraged and will constitute an example of more

suitable corporate governance.

51t is notable that in some companies ali members of the collegial body may, due to a very small number of minority
sharehoiders, be elected by the votes of the majority shareholder or a few major shareholders. But even a member of the
collegial body elected by the majority shareholders may be considered independent if he/she meets the independence criteria

set out in the Code.
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3.7. A member of the coliegial body should be considered to
be independent only if he is free of any business, family or
other relationship with the company, its controtling
shareholder or the management of either, that creates a
conflict of mterest such as to impair his judgment. Since all
cases when member of the collegial body is hikely to
become dependant are impossibie to list, moreover,
relationships and circumstances associated with the

determination of independence may vary amongst |

companies and the best practices of solving this problem are
yet to evolve in the course of time, assessment of
independence of a member of the collegial body should be
based on the contents of the relationship and clrcumstances
rather than their form. The key criteria for identifving
whether a member of the collegial body can be considered
to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or member of the
board (if a collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board} of
the company or any associated company and has
not been such during the last five vears;

2) Hefshe i3 not an employee of the company or some
ary company and has not been such during the last
three years, except for cases when a member of the
coliegial body does not belong to the senior
management and was elected to the collegial body
as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been not receiving
significant additional remuneration fom the
company or associated company other than
rernuneration for the office in the collegial body.
Such additional remuneration includes participation
in share opticns or some other performance based
pay systems; it does not include compensation
payments for the previous office in the company
(provided that such payment is no way related with
later positior) as per pension plans {inclusive of
deferred compensations);

4y He/she i3 not a contolling shareholder or |

representative of such shareholder (control as
defined in the Council Directive B83/349/EEC
Article 1 Part 1);

3) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated
company within the past year directly or as a
partner, shareholder, director or superior employee
of the subject having such relationship. A subject i3
considered to have business relations when # is a
major supplier or service provider (inclusive of
financial, legal, counseling and consulting
services), major client or organization receiving
significant payments from the company or its
group;

No

Due to insignificantly small number of the votes held
by the minor shareholders, the election of the members
of the Supervisory Council depends en votes of two
major sharecholders. The practice still exists . the
Company that the candidates to the members of the
Supervisory Council are nominated, as a rule, from
persons  having employment relations with the
contreiiing shareholdess.

The Supervisory Council has not defined the term
“independence.”
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6) He/she is not and has not been, during the last three
vears, partner or employee of the current or former
external audit company of the company or
associated company;

7) Hefshe is not an executive director or member of the
board in some other company where exscutive
director of the company or member of the board (if
a collegtal body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory beard) is
non-gxecutive  director or member of the
supervisory board, he/she may not also have any
other material relationships with executive directors
of the company that arise from their participation in
activities of other companies or bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a member of
the collegial body for over than 12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an executive director
or member of the board (if a collegial body zlected
by the general sharcholders’ meeting is the
supervisory board} or fo any person listed in above
items 1 to 8. Close relative is considered to be a
spouse (common-law spouse), children and parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes independence is
fundamentaily an issue for the coliegial body Hself to
determine. The collegial body may decide that, despite a
particular member meets all the criterfa of independence laid
down in this Code, he cannot be considered independent due
to special personal or company-refated circumstances.

3.9, Necessary information on conclusions the collegial body
has come to in its determination of whether a particular
member of the body should be considered to be independent
should be disclosed. When a person is nominated to become a
member of the collegial body, the company should disclose
whether it considers the person to be independent. When 2
particular membwer of the collegial body does not meet one or
more criteria of independence set out in this Code, the
companty should disclose its reasons for nevertheless
considering the member t0 be independent. In addition, the
company should annually disclose which members of the
collegial body it considers to be independent.

The Company has not appled the practice of evaluation
and disclosure of independence of the Supervisery
Council members.
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3.10. When one or more critéria of independence set out in
this Code has not been met throughout the year, the company
should disclose its reasons for conmsidering a particular
member of the collegial body to be independent. To ensure
accuracy of the information disclosed in relation with the
independence of the members of the collegial body, the
company should require independent members to have their
independence periodically re-confirmed.

o

Considering the reasons presented with regard to
implementation of recommendations as per Principle
IIL

3.11. In order to ternunerate members of a collegial body for
their work and pasticipation in the meetings of the collegial
body, they may be remunerated from the company’s funds.®.
The general shareholders’ meeting should approve the amount
of such remuneration.

Not
applicable

The members of the Company’s Supervisory Council
have not been remunerated from the Company’s funds,

Principle IV: The duties and liabilities of a collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting

The corperate governance framework should ensure proper and effective functioning of the collegial body elected by the
general shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to the collegial bedy should ensure effective monitoring’ of the
company’s management bodies and protection of interests of all the company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ i

meeting (hereinafier in this Principle referred to as the
‘collegial body”) should ensure integrity and tranéparency of.
the company’s financial statements and: the control system.
The collegial body should issue recommendations to the
company’s management bodies and monitor and control the
company’s management performance.?

The Supervisory Council elected in the Company make
proposals and comments to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders on the Company’s annual financial
statements, the draft of distribution of profif, ‘annual
repart of the Company, aciivities of the Board and the
General Director as well as performs other functions
assigned to the Supervisory Council in association with
supervision of the activities of the Company and Hs
management bodies.

81t is notable that currently it is not yet completely clear, in what form members of the supervisory board or the hoard may be
remunerated for their work in these bodies. The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania {Qfficial Gazette, 2003, No
123-3574) provides that members of the supervisory board or the board may be remunerated for their work in the supervisory
board or the board by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the manner prescribed by Article 59 of this Law, ie. from the
company’s profit. The current wording, contrary to the wording effective before 1 January 2004, eliminates the exclusive
requirement that annual bonuses {tantiems) should be the only form of the company’s compensation to members of the
supervisory board or the board. Se it seems that the Law contains no prohibition to remunerate members of the supervisory
board or the board for their work in other forms, besides bonuses, although this possibility is not expressly stated either.

7 Ses Footnote 3.

¥ See Footnote 3. In the event the éoﬂegial body elected by the general sharsholders’ meeting is the board, it should provide
recommendations to the company’s single-persen body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer,
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4.2, Members of the collegial body should act in good faith,
with care and responsibility for the benefit and in the interests
of the company and its shareholders with due regard to the
interests of employees and public welfare. Independent
members of the collegial body should {(a) under all
circumstanices maintain independence of their analysis,
decision-making and actions (k) do not seek and accept any
unjustified  privileges  that might compromise their
independence, and (¢} clearly express their objections should
a member consider that decision of the collegial body is
against the nferests of the company. Should a collegial body
have passed decisions independent member has serfous
doubis about, the member should make adequate conclusions.
Should an independent member resign from his office, he
should explain the reasons in a letter addressed to the collegial
body or audit commitiee and, if necessary, respective
company-not-pertaining body (institution).

Yes

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, all members
of the Supervisory Council act in good faith with
respect to the Company and in the interests of the
Company but not in. their own or third parties’ interests.

4.3, Each member should devote sufficient time and attention
to perform his duties as a member of the collegial body. Fach
member of the collegial body should limit other professional
obiigations of his (in parficular any directorships held in other
companies) in such a manner they do not interfere with proper
performance of duties of a member of the collegial body. In
the event a member of the collegiai body should be present in
less than a half’ of the meetings of the coliegial body
throughout the financial year of the company, shareholders of
the company should be notified.

The Company has not notified the Company’s
shareholders of the cases when a member of the
Supervisory Council has participated at less than a haif
of the Supervisory Council meetings throughout the
financial year because the procedure of such
notification has not been established, if the General
Meeting of Shareholders is not convened.

4.4, Where decisions of a collegial body may have a different
effect on the company’s shareholders, the collegial body
should treat all shareholders impartially and fairly. It should
ensure that shareholders are properly informed on the
company’s affairs, strategies, risk meanagement and resolution
of conflicts of interest. The company shouid have a clearly
established role of members of the collegial body when
communicating with and committing to shareholders.

No

The role of the Supervisory Council members, when
communicating  with and  committing to  the
shareholders, has not been clearly defined in the
Company.

¥ |t is notabie that companies can make this requirement more stringent and provide that sharehoiders should be
informed about failure to participate at the meetings of the collegial body if, for instance, a member of the collegial
body participated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of the meetings. Such measures, which ensure active participation in the
meetings of the collegial body, are encouraged and will constifute an example of more suitable corporate

governance.
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4.5. It is recommended that transactions (except nsignificant
ones due o their low value or concluded when carrying out
routine operations in the company under usual conditions),
concluded between the company and its shareholders,
members of the supervisory or managing bodies or other
natural or legal persons that exert or may exert influence on
the company’s management should be subject to approval of
the collegial body. The decision concerning approval of such
transactions should be desmed adopted only provided the
majority of the independent members of the collegial body
voted for such a decision.

Transactions described in this recommendation are not
approved by the Supervisory Council because the
Articles of Association do not provide for such
approval; moreover, the Company’s Supervisory
Council does not have independent members,

4.6, The coilegial body should be independent in passing
decisions that are significant for the company’s operations
and strategy. Taken separately, the coilegial body should be
independent of the company’s management bodies'”.
Members of the collegial body should act and pass decisions
without an outside influence from the persons who have
elected it Companies should ensure that the collegial body
and its committees are provided with sufficient administrative
and {inancial resources to discharge their duties, including the
right to obtain, in particular from employees of the company,
all the necessary information or to seek independent legal,
accounting or any other advice on issues pertaining to the
competence of the collegial body and its committecs.

Independence of the Supervisory Council members
from persons who elected them is net ensured and/or
the latter influence their decisions, also consideting the
fact that persons nominated to the Supervisory Council
by the Government of the Republic of Lithuania and
elected to it in accordance with the procedure
established are also the state officials voting in
accordance with a respective administrative document
issued by the state government body.

' In the event the collegial body elected by the general shareholders” meeting is the board, the recommendation COnceming
its independence from the company’s management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the independence from the

company’s chief executive officer,
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4.7, Activities of the collegial body should be organized in a
manner that independent members of the collegial body could
have major influence in relevant areas where chances of
occurrence of conflicts of interest are very high. Such areas ¢
be considered as highly relevant are issues of nomination of
company’s directors, determination of directors’ remuneration
and control and assessment of company’s- audit. Therefore
when the mentioned issues are attributable to the competence
of the collegial body, it is recommended that the collegial
body should establish nomination, remuneration, and audit
committess, Companies should ensure that the functions
atfributable to the nomipation, remuneration, and audit
committees are carried out. However they may decide to
merge these functions and set up less than three committees.
in such case a company should explain. in detail reasons
behind the selection of alternative approach and how the
selected approach complies with the oblectives set forth for
the three different committess. Should the collegial body of
the company comprise small number of members, the
functions assigned to the three committees may be performed
by the collegial body itself provided that it meets
composition requirements advocated for the commitiees and
that adequate information. is provided in this respect. In such
case provisions of this Code relating to the committees of the
collegial body (in particular with respect to their role,
aperation, and transparency) should apply, where relevant, to
the collegial body as a whole.

No

The committees have not been formed considering the
fact that the Supervisory Council has no independent
members; for these reasons the nomination committee
was not formed because, subject fo Paragraph 1 of
Section 1 of Article 32 of the Law on Companies and
the Asticles of Association of the Company, the
Supervisory Council has the right to elect {appoint}
only board members (directors); therefore the functions
of this committee are performed by the Supervisory
Council itself, the remuneration committee was not
formed considering the fact that, subject to provisions
of the Law on Companies and Articles of Association
of the Company, establishment of remuneration io the
Board Members and the Company’s CEC {directors} is
not within the competence of the Supervisory Council;
the audit commitiee was not formed because the |
functions of this commitiee ars performed by the
Supervisory Council itself, based on the authority
assigned.

4.8. The key objective of the committess is {0 increase
efficiency of the activities of the collegial body by ensuring
that decisions are based on due consideration, and to help

organize its work with & view 10 ensuring that the decisions it ;

takes are free of material conflicts of interest. Committees
should present the collegial bedy with recommendations
concerning the decisions of the collegial body. Nevertheless
the final decision shall be adopted by the collegial body. The
¢ recommendation on creation of committees is not intended, in
principle, to constrict the competence of the collegial body or
to remove the matters considered from the purview of the
| collegial body itself, which remains fully responsible for the
decisions taken in its field of competence.

The committees have not been formed within the
Supervisory Council so far, considering the reasons
presented in explanation regarding implementation of
recommendation 4.7 under Principle IV.

4.9, Committees established by the collegial body should
normally be composed of at least three members, In

companies with small number of members of the collegial |

body, they could exceptionally be composed of two members.
Majority of the members of each comumitiee should be
constituted from independent members of the collegial body.
In cases when the company chooses not to set up a
supervisory board, remuneration and audit committees should
be entirely comprised of nen-executive  directors.
Chairmanship and membership of the commiftees should be
decided with due regard to the need to ensure that committee
membership is refreshed and that undue reliance is not placed
on particular individuals,

No

The commitiees have not been formed within the
Supervisory Council so far, considering the reasons
presented in explanation regarding implementation of
recomunendation 4.7 under Principle IV.
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4.10. Authority of each of the committees should be
determined by the collegial body. Comumittees should perform
their duties in line with awhority delegated to them and
inform the collegial bedy on their activities and performance
on regular basis. Authority of every committee stipulating the
role and rights and duties of the committee should be made
public at least once a year (as part of the information
disclosed by the company ampually on its  corporate
governance structures and practices). Companies should also
make public annually a statement by existing committees on
their compaosition, number of meetings and attendance over
the year, and their main activities. Audit conmmittee should
confirm that it is satisfied with the independence of the audit
process and describe briefly the actions it has taken to reach
this conclusion.

The commiftees have not been formed within the
Supervisory Council so far, considering the reasons
presented in explanation regarding implementation of
recorumendation 4.7 under Principle TV,

4.11. In order to ensure independence and impartiality of the
comimittess, members of the collegial body that are not
members of the comumittes should commoenly have a right to
participate in the meetings of the committee only if invited by
the committee. A committee may invite or demand
participation in the meeting of particular officers or experts.
Chairman of each of the commitiees should have a possibility
to maintain direct comununication with the shareholders.
Events when such are to be performed should be specified in
the regulations for commitiee activities.

i The committees have not been formed within the

Supervisory Council so far, considering the reasons
presented in explanation regarding implementation of
recommendation 4.7 under Principle IV,

4,12, Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination commiftee should
be the following:

» Identify and recommend, for the approval of the collegial
body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The nomination
commuitiee should evaluate the balance of skills, knowiedge
and experience on the management body, prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required to assume 2
particular office, and assess the time commitinent expected.
MNomination committee can also consider candidates to
members of the coliegial body delegated by the sharcholders
of the company;

+ Assess on regular basis the structure, size, composition
and performance of the supervisory and management
bodies, and meke recommendations to the coilegial body
regarding the means of achieving necessary changes;

» Assess on regular basis the skilis, knowledge and
experience of individual directors and report on this to the
collegial body;

» Properly consider issues related to succession planning;

« Review the policy of the management bodies for selection
and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2, Nomination committee should consider proposals by
other parties, including management and sharcholders. When
dealing with issues related o executive directors or members
of the board (if & coilegial body elected by the general
shareholders” meeting is the supervisory board) and senior
management, chief executive officer of the company should

No

The nomination comemittes has not been formed within
the Supervisory Counectl so far, considering the reasons
presented in explanation regarding implementation of
recommendation 4.7 under Principle IV,
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be consulted by, and entitled to submit proposals to the
nomination committes.

4.13, Remuneration Commitiee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration comimittee should
be the following:

» Make proposals, for the approval of the collegial body, on
the remuneration policy for members of management bodies
and executive directors. Such policy should address all
forms of compensation, including the fixed remuneration,
performance-based  remwuneration  schemes,  pension
arrangements, and termination payments. Proposals

considering performance-based remuneration schemes

should be accompanied with recommendations on the
related objectives and evaluation criteria, with a view to
properly aligning the pay of executive director and members
of the management bodies with the long-term interests of
. the shareholders and the objectives set by the collegial body;
+ Make proposals to the coliegial body on the individual
remuneration  for executive directors and member of
management bodies in order their remunerations are
consistent with company’s remuneration policy and the
evaluation of the performance of these persons concerned.
In doing so, the committee should be properly informed on
the total compensation obtained by executive directors and
members of the management bodies from the affiliated
companies;

» Make proposals to the collegial body on suitable forms of
contracts for executive directors and members of the
managerment bodies;

+ Assist the collegial body in overseeing how the company
complies  with appiicable provisions regarding the

The remuneration commitiee has not been formed
within the Supervisory Council so far, considering the
reasons  presented in  explanation  regarding
implementation of recommendation 4.7 under Principle
v,
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remuneration-related information disclosure (in particuiar
the remuneration policy applied and individual
remuneration of directors);

« Make general recommendations to the executive directors
and members of the management bodies on the level and
structure of remuneration for senior management {as defined
by the collegial body) with regard to the respective
mformation provided by the executive directors and
members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and other share-based
incentives which may be granted to directors or other
employees, the commiitee should:

= Consider general policy regarding the granting of the
above mentioned schemes, In particular stock options, and
make any related proposals to the collegial body;

+ Examine the related information that is given in the
company’s annual report and documents intended for the
use during the shareholders meeting;

+ Make proposals to the collegial body regarding the choice
between granting options to subscribe shares or granting
options to purchase shares, specifying the reasons for us
choice as well as the consequences that this choice has.
4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributable to the
competence of the remuneration comimitiee, the committee
should at least address the chairman of the collegial body
andfor chief executive officer of the company for their
opinion on the remuneration of other executive directors or
members of the management bodies.

4.14. Audit Committee.

4.14,}. Key functions of the audit committee shouid be the
following:
= Observe the integrity of the financial information provided
by the company, in particular by reviewing the relevance
and consistency of the accounting methods used by the
company and its group (including the criteria for the
consolidation of the accounts of companies in the group);
» At least once a year review the systems of internal control
and risk management to ensure that the key risks (inclusive
of the risks in relation with compliance with existing laws
~and regulations) are properly identified, managed and
reflected in the information provided;
+ Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit function, among
other things, by making recommendations on the selection,
appointment, reappointment and removal of the head of the
internal sudit department and on the budget of the
department, and by monitoring the responsiveness of the
management to its findings and recommendations. Should
there be no internal audit authority in the company, the nead
for one should be reviewed at least annually;
+ Make recommendations to the collegial body related with
selection, appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor (to be done by the general shareholders’
meeting) and with the terms and conditions of his
engagement. The committee should investigate situations
that lead to a resignation of the audit company or auditor
and make recommendations on required actiens in such
situations,

The audit committee has not been formed within the
Supervisory Council so far, considering the reasons
presented in explanation regarding implementation of
recommendation 4,7 under Principle IV.
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« Moritor independence and impartiality of the- external
auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit company’s
compliance with applicable guidance relating to the rotation
of audit partners, the level of fees paid by the company, and
similar issues. In order fo prevent occurrence of maferial
conflicts of interest, the committes, based on the auditor’s
disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations pald by the
company to the auaditor and network, should at all times
monitor nature and extent of the non-audit services. Having
regard to the principals and guldelines established in the 16
May 2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/3S0/EC, the
committee should determine and apply a formal policy
establishing types of non-audit services that are (a)
exciuded, (b} permissible only afier review by the
committes, and {c) permissible without referral to the
cormmittes;

+ Review efficiency of the external audit process and
responsiveness of management to recommendations made in
the external auditor’s management letter,

4.14.2. All members of the committee should be furnished
with complete information on particulars of accounting,
financial and other operations of the company. Company’s
management should inform the audit committee of the
methods used to account for significant and unusual
transactions where the accounting treatment may be open to
different approaches. In such case a special consideration
should be given to company’s operations in ofishore centers
and/or activities carried out through special purpose vehicles
{organizations) and justification of such operations.

4.143. The audit committee should decide whether
participation of the chairman of the collegial body, chief
executive officer of the company, chief financial officer {or
superior smployees in charge of finances, treasury and
accounting), or internal and external auditors in the
meetings of the commitiee is required (if required, when).
The commitiee should be entitled, when needed, to meet
with any relevant person without executive directors and
members of the management bodies present.

4,14.4, Iaternal and external auditors should be secured with
not only effective working relationship with management,
but also with free access to the collegial body. For this

purpose the audit comwmiftee should act as the principal

contact person for the intemal and external auditors.

4,14,5. The audit committee should be informed of the
internal auditor’s work program, and should be furnished
with intemnal audit’s reports or periodic summaries. The
audit committee should also be informed of the work
program of the external auditor and should be furnished
with report disclosing ali relationships between the
independent auditor and the company and its group. The
committee should be timely furnished Information on all
issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whether the
company is following applicable provisions regarding the
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possibility for employees to report alleged significant
irregularities in the company, by way of complaints or
through anonymous submissions {(normally to an
independent member of the collegial body), and should
ensure that there is a procedure established for proportionate
and independent investigation of these issues and for
appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit comemittee shounld report on its activities to

the collegial body at least once in every six months, at the |

time the yearly and half-yearly staternents are approved.

4.15. Every year the collegial body should conduct the
agsessment of its activities. The assessment should include
evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work organization
and ability to act as a group, evaluation of each of the
collegial body member’s and comnittee’s competence and
work efficiency and assessment whether the collegial body
has achieved its objectives. The collegial body should, at least
once a vear, make public (as part of the information the
company annually discloses on its management structures and
practices) respective information on its internal organization
and working procedures, and specify what material changes
were made as a result of the assessment of the collegial body
of its own activities.

The Company has no annual practice with respect to the
evaluation of the Supervisory Council and/or disclosure
of infermation thereof.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’s collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and management bodies established in the company sheuld ensure efficient operation
of these bodies and decision-making and encourage active co-operation between the company’s bodies.
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5.1, The company’s supervisory and management bodies
(hereinafter in this Principle the concept ‘coliegial bodies’
covers both the collegial bodies of supervision and the
collegial bodies of menagement) should be chaired by
chairpersons of these bodies. The chairperson of a collegial
body is responsible for proper convocation of the collegial
body meetings. The chairperson should ensure that
information about the meeting being convened and its agenda
are communicated to all members of the boedy. The
chairperson of a collegial body should ensure appropriate
conducting of the meetings of the collegial body. The
chairperson should ensure order and working atmosphere
during the meeting,

Yes

The recommendation is implemented through
organization of the activities of the Company’s

Supervisory Council and the Board. )

52 | is recommended that meetings of the company’s
collegial bodies should be camied owt according to the
schedule approved in advanice at certain intervals of time.
Each company is free to decide how often to convene
meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recommended that
these meetings should be convened at such intervals, which
would guarantee an interrupted resolution of the essential
corporate govemnance issues. Meetings of the company’s
supervisory board should be convened at least once in a
quarter, and the company’s board should meet at least once a
month!!.

The Company has established the frequency of the
meetings of the Supervisory Council and the Roard;
however, thers is po practice to approve specific
schedules of meetings of the collegial bodies. The
meetings of the Company’s Supervisory Council were

not held every quarter in the reporting year; however, -

seven meetings were held during the indicated period. It
is intended to convene the meetings of the Company’s
Board at least once a quarter; however actally, they
were convened more than 14 times during the reporting
year.

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notified about the
mesting being convened in advance in order w allow
sufficient time for proper preparation for the issues on the
agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful discussion and
adoption. of appropriate decisions. Alengside with the notice
about the meeting being convened, all the documents relevant
to the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be
submitted to the members of the collegial body, The agenda
of the meeting shouid not be changed or supplemented during
the meefing, unless all members of the collegial body are
present or certain issues of great importance to the company
require immediate resolution,

Yes

The Company’s existing practice complies with the
recommendation; however, the Work Regulations of
the Supervisory Council and the Board provide for
possibility of submission of documents related to the
agenda of meetings later than the notification of the
mesting convened is sent out, but not later than three
days prior to a respective meeting.

54. In order to co-ordinate operation .of the company’s
collegfal bodies and enswre effective decision-making
process, chairpersons of the company’s coliegial bodies of
supervision and management shouid closely co-operate by co-
coordinating dafes of the meetings, their agendas and
resolving other issues of corporate governance. Members of
the company’s board should be free o attend meetings of the
company’s supervisory hoard, especially where issues
concerning removal of the board members, their Hability or
rermuneration are discussed.

Yes

The Company’s existing practice complies with the
recommendation.

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholders and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should énsure the equitable treatment of all sharehelders, including minority and
foreign shareholders. The corporate governance framework should protect the rights of the shareholders.

"1 The frequency of meetings of the collegial body provided for in the recommendation must be applied in those cases when
both additional collegial bodiss are formed at the company, the board and the supervisory board. In the event only one
additional collegial body is formed in the company, the frequency of its meetings may be as established for the supervisory

board, i.e. at least once in & quarter.
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6.1. It is' recommended that the company’s capital should
consist only of the shares that grant the same rights to voting,
ownership, dividend and other rights to all their holders.

Yes

The ordinary registered shares forming the Company’s
authorized capital grant equal rights to all shareholders
of the Company.

6.2. It is recommended that investors should have access to
the information concerning the rights attached to the shares of
the new issuc or those issued earlier in advance, ie. before
they purchase shares.

Yes

The Company, in accordance with the procedure
established by applicable legal requirements, announces
the Company's Articles of Association and other

mandatory documents/notifications which

establish/indicate the rights granted by the shares of the |

new 1ssue or those issued earlier.

6.3. Transactions that are imﬁnoﬁant t0 the 'company and its
shareholders, such as transfer, investment, and pledge of the
comnpany’$ assets or any other type of encumbrance should be
subject to approval of the general shareholders’ meeting.'2 All
sharchelders should be furnished with equal opportunity to
familiarize with and participate in the decision-making
process when significant corporate issues, including approval
of transactions referred fo above, are discussed.

No

The Company’s Articles of Association doe not provide
for the criteria of the important transactions based on
which transactions which require approval of the
General Meeting of Shareholders are selected.

6.4, Procedures of convening and conducting a general
shareholders” meeting should ensure equal opportunities for
the shareholders to effectively participate at the meetings and
should not prejudice the rights and interests of the
shareholders, The venue, date, and time of the shareholders’
meeting should net hinder wide attendance of the
shareholders. the sharchelders’ meeting, the
company’s supervisory and management bodies should
enable the shareholders to lodge questions on issues on the
agenda of the general sharcholders’ meeting and receive

Prior to

answers to them.

Yes

The Company’s existing practice complies with the
recomumendation; however, the Company has no formal
procedure based on which the Corﬁpany’s shareholders
would have a possibility, before the General Meeting of
Shareholders, to ask the members of the Company’s
supervision and management bodies questions related
to the agenda of the General Mesting of Shareholders

and to obtain answers. However, ali shareholders have |

the right to address to the Company the relevant
questions and obtain answers.

12 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazerte, 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutions
concerning the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or acquisition of the long-tenms assets accounting for more than 1/20 of
the company’s authorised capital to the competence of the general shareholders’ meeting. However, transactions that are
important and material for the company’s activity should be considered and approved by the general shareholders’ meeting.
The Law on Companies contains no prohibition {0 this effect either. Yet, in order not to encumber the company’s activity and
escape an umreasonably frequent consideration of fransactions at the meetings, companies are free to establish their own
criteria of material transactions, which are subject to the approval of the meeting. While establishing these criteria of material
transactions, companies may follow the criteria set out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Article 34 of the Law on
Companies or derogate from them in view of the specific nature of their operation and their attermpt to ensure uninterrupted,

efficient functioning of the corpany.
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6.5. It is recommended that documents on the course of the
general shareholders’ meeting, including draft resolutions of
the meetng, should be placed on the publicly accessible
website of the company in advance™. It is recommended that
the minutes of the general sharcholders’ meeting after signing
them and/or adopted resolutions should be alse placed on the
publicly accessible website of the company. Seeking to ensure
the right of foreigners to familiarize with the information,
whenever feasible, documents referred to in  this
recommendation should be published in English and/or other
foreipn  languages. Documents referred to  in this
recommendation may be published on the publicly accessible
website of the company to the extent that publishing of these
documents is not detrimental to the company or the
company’s commercial secrets are not revealed. '

The Company has not established a procedure based on |

which the documents prepared for the General Meeting
of Shareholders would be published in advance on the
Company’s publicly accessible website.

6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the opportunity to
vote in the general shareholders’ meeting in person and in
gbsentia. Shareholders should not be prevented from voting in
writing in advance by completing the general voting ballot.

Yes

The Company’s shareholders may exercise their right to
participate at the General Meeting of Shareholders in
person and through a representative, if such person has
the appropriate proxy or if an agreement for transfer of
the voting right has been concluded with such person in
accordance with the procedure established by
applicable legal acts; the Company also creates
conditions for the shareholders to vote by completing
the general voting ballot, as provided by the Law on
Companies.

6.7. With a view to increasing the shareholders’ opportunities
to participate effectively at shareholders’ meefings, the
companies are recommended to expand use of modem
technelogies in voting processes by allowing the shareholders
to vote in general meetings via terminal equipment of
telecomumunications.  In such  cases  security of
telecommunication  eguipment, text protection and a
possibility to identify the signature of the voting person
should be guaranteed. Moreover, companies could furnish its
shareholders, especially foreigners, with the opportunity to
watch  shareholder meetings by means
technologies.

of modem

The Company does not follow this recommendation to
create possibilities for the shareholders to vote at the
meetings of shareholders via terminal equipment of
telecommunications because it does not have technical
capabilities to ensure signature identification of the
voting person, considering the large number of the
shareholders, to create satisfactory conditions, from the
technical and economic standpeint, for watching the
meetings of the sharsholders by means of modemn
technologies.

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encourage members of the corperate bodies to avoid conflicts of interest and
assure transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest regarding members of the corporate bodies.

P The documents referred to above should be placed on the company’s website in advance with due regard to 2 10-day
period before the general shareholders’ meeting, determined in paragraph 7 of Axticle 26 of the Law on Companies of the

Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574).
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7.1, Any member of the company's supervisory and
management body should avoid a situation, in which his/her
personal inferests are in conflict or may be in conflict with the
company’s interests. In case such a situation did occur, a
member of the company’s supervisory and management body
should, within reasonable time, inform cther members of the
same collegial body or the company’s body that has elected
hirm/her, or to the company’s shareholders about a situation of
a conflict of interest, indicate the nature of the contlict and
value, where possible.

Yes

7.2. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body may not mix the company’s assets, the use
of which has not been mutually agreed upon, with hissher
personal assets or use them or the information which hefshe
learns by virtue of his/her position as a member of 2 corporate
body for his/her personal benefit or for the benefit of any third

person without a prior agreement of the general shareholders”

meeting or any other corporate body authorized by the
meeting.

7.3, Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body may conclude a transaction with the
company, 2 member of a corporate body of which hefshe is.
Such a transaction (except insignificant ones due to their low

value or concluded when carrying out rcutine operations in -

the company under usual conditions) must be fmmediately
reported in writing or orally, by recording this in the minutes
of the meeting, to other members of the same corporate body
or to the corporate body that has elected him/her or to the
company’s sharcholders. Transactions specified in  this
recommendation are aiso subject fo recommendation 4.5,

Yes

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, all members
of the Supervisory Council act in good faith with
respect to the Company and in the interests of the
Company but not in their own or third parties’ interests.

74. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body should abstain from voting when decisions
concerning transactions or other issues of personal or business
interest are voted on.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, all members
of the Supervisory Council act in good faith with
respect to the Company and in the interests of the
Company but not in their own or third parties’ interests.

Principle VIIT: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and precedure for approval, revision and disclosure of directors’ remuneration established in the
company should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining remuneration of directors, in addition it
should ensure publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneration policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1, A company should make a public statement of the
company’s remuneration policy (hereinafler the remuneration
statement). This statement should be part of the company’s
annual accounts. Remuneration statement shouid also be
posted on the company’s website.

No

The Company doe not make public statemnents on
remuneration under recommendations of this code
because the members of the Company’s Supervisory
Council and the Board (directors) have not been
remunerated so far.

8.2 Remuneration statement should mainly focus om
directors’ remuneration policy for the following year and, if
appropriate, the subsequent years. The statement should
contain & summary of the implementation of the
remuneration policy in the previous financial year. Special
attention should be given to any significant changes in
company’s remuneration policy as compared to the previous
financial year.

No

The Company does not prepare the remuneration
statement considering the reasons presented in
explanation regarding
recommendations 8.1 under Principie ViIL

implementation of
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8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise include the
following information:

* Explanation of the relative importance of the variable and
non-variable components of directors’ remuneration,

« Sufficient information on performance criteria that entitles
directors to share opfions, shares or variable components of
remuneration;

« Sufficient Information on the linkage between the
remuneration and performance;

 The main parameters and rationale for any annual bonus
schemne and any other non-cash benefits;

« A description of the main characteristics of supplementary
pension or early retirerent schemes for directors.

No

The Company does not prepare the remuneration
staternent considering the reasons presented in
explanation regarding implementation of
recommendations 8.1 under Principle VIILL

§.4.. Remuneration statement should also summarize and
gxplain company’s policy regarding the terms of the contracts
executed with executive directors and members of the
management bodies. It should include, inter alia, information
on the duration of contracts with executive directors and
members of the management bodies, the appiicable notice
periods and detalls of provisions for termination payments
jinked to early termination under contracis for executive
directors and members of the management bodies.

No

8.5. The information on preparatory and decision-making
processes, during which a policy of remuneration of directors
is being established, should also be disclosed. Information
should include data, if applicable, on authorities and
composition of the remunerafion committee, names and
surnames of external consultants whose services have been
used in determination of the remuneration policy as well as
the role of shareholders’ annual general meeting.

The Company does not prepare the remuneration
statement considering the reasons presented in
explanation regarding implementation of
recommendations 8.1 under Principle VIIL

8.6. Without prejudice to the role and organization of the
relevant bodies responsible for setting  dirsctors’
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any other
significant change in remuneration policy should be
included into the agenda of the shareholders’ annual general
meeting, Remuneration statempent should be put for voting
in shareholders’ annual general meeting. The vote may be
either mandatory or advisory.

The Company does not prepare the remuneration
staterment  considering the reasoms presented in
explanation regarding implementation of
recomumendations 8.1 under Principle VIIL

8.7 Remuneration statement should also contain detailed
information on the entire amount of remuneration, inclusive
of other benefits, that was paid to individual directors over
the relevant financial year. This document should list at
least the information set out in items 8.7.1 to 8.7.4 for each
person who has served as a director of the company at any
time during the relevant financial year.

8.7.1. The following remuneration and/or emoiuments-
related information should be disclosed:

« The total amount of remuneration paid or due to the
director for services performed during the relevant financial
year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendance fees fixed by
the annual general shareholders meeting;

+ The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

+ The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing and/or
honus payments and the reasons why such bonus payments
and/or profit sharing were granted;

No

The Company does not prepare the remuneration
statermnent considering the reasons presented in
explanation regarding implementation of
recommendations 8.1 under Principle VIIL
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+ If permissible by the law, any significant additional
remuneration paid to directors for special services outside
the scope of the usual functions of a director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each former executive
director or member of the management body as a result of
his resignation from the office during the previous financial
year,

+ Total estimated value of non-cash benefits considered as
remuneration, other than the items covered in the above
points.

8.7.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acquire share
options and/or all other share-incentive schemes, the
following information should be disclosed:

« The number of share options offered or shares granted by
the company during the relevant financial year and their
conditions of application;

= The number of shares options exercised during the relevant
financial year and, for each of them, the number of shares
involved and the exercise price or the value of the interest in
the share incentive scheme at the end of the financial vear;
+ The number of share options unexercised at the end of the
financial vear; their exercise price, the exercise date and the
main conditions for the exercise of the rights;

+ All changes in the terms and conditions of existing share
options oceurring during the financial year.

8.7.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

« When the pension scheme is a defined-benefit scheme,
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits under that scheme
during the relevant financial vear;

* When the pension scheme is defined-contribution scheme,
detailed information on contributions paid or payable by the
company in respect of that director during the relevant
financial year.

8.7.4. The statement should also state amounts that the
company or any subsidiary company or entity included in
the consolidated annual financial statements of the company
has paid to each person who has served as a director in the
company at any time during the relevant financtal year in
the form of loans, advance payments or guaraniees,
including the amount outstanding and the interest rate.

8.8. Schemes anticipating remuneration of directors in
shares, share options or any other right to purchase shares or
be remunerated on the basis of share price movements
should be subject to the prior approval of shareholders’
annual general meeting by way of a resolution prior to their
adoption. The approval of scheme should be related with the
scheme itself and not to the grant of such share-based
benefits under that scheme to individual directors. All
significant changes in scheme provisions should also be
subject to shareholders’ approval prior to their adoption; the
appraval decision should be made in shareholders’ annual
general meeting. In such case shareholders should be
notified on all terms of suggested changes and get an
explanation on the impact of the suggested changes.

Not
applicable

The Company does not implement schemes under
which the directors are remunerated in shares, share
options or any other right to purchase shares, or be
remunerated on the basis of share price movements. '
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8.9, The following issues should be subject to approval by
the shareholders’ annual general mesting:

« Grant of share-based schemes, including share options, 16
directors: '

+ Determination of maximum number of shares and main
condifions of share granting;

*» The termt within which options can be exercised;

= The conditions for any subsequent change in the exercise
of the options, if permissible by law,

= All other long-term incentive schemes for which directors
are eligible and which are not available to other employees
of the company under similar terms. Annual general
meeting should also set the deadline within which the body
responsible for remuneration of directors may award
compensations listed in this article to individual directers.

§.10. Should national law or company’s Articles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangement under
which any rights are grantfed to-subscribe to shares at a price
lower than the market value of the share prevailing on the
day of the price determination, or the average of the market
values over a number of days preceding the date when the
exercise price is determined, should also be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.

8.11. Provisions of Articles 8.8 and 8.9 should not be
applicable to schemes allowing for participation under
similar conditions to company’s employees or employees of
any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible to
participate in the scheme and which has been approved in
the sharcholders’ annual general meeting.

8.12. Prior to the annual general meeting that is intended to
consider decision stipulated in Article 8.8, the shareholders
must be provided an opportunity to familiarize with draft
resolution and project-related notice (the documents should
be posted on the company’s website). The notice should
contain the full text of the share-based remuneration
schemes or a description of their key terms, as well as full
names of the participants in the schemes. Notice should also
specify the relationship of the schemes and the overall
remuneration policy of the dircctors. Draft resolution must
have a clear reference to the scheme ftself or to the summary
of its key terms. Shareholders must also be presented with
information on how the company intends to provide for the
shares required to meet its obligations under incentive
schemes. It should be clearly stated whether the company
intends fo buy shares in the market, hold the shares in
reserve or issue new ones. There should also be a summary
on scheme-related expenses the company will suffer due to
the anticipated application of the scheme. All information
given in this article must be posted om the company’s
website,

Principle [X: The role of stakeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders as established by law and encourage active co-
operation between companies and stakeholders in creating the company value, jobs and financial sustainability. For the
purposes of this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” inciudes investors, employees, creditors, suppliers, clients, local
community and other persons having certain interest in the company coneerned.




9.1. The corporate governance framework should assure that
the rights of stakeholders that are protected by law are
respected.

0.2. The corporate governance fFamework should create
conditions for the stakeholders to participate in corporate
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Examples of
mechanisms  of stakeholder participation in corporate
governance include: employee participation in adoption of
certain key decisions for the company; consultng the
employees on corporate governance and other impertent
issues; employee patticipation in the company’s share capital;
creditor involvement in governance in the context of the
company’s insolvency, et

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corporate
governance process, they should have access to relevant
information.

The Company complies with the related requirements
established by applicable legal acts and related
obligations undertaken by agreements.

Principle X: Information diselosure and transparency

The corporate governanee framework should ensure that timely and accurate disclosure is miade on all material information
regarding the company, including the financial situation, performanee and governance of the company.
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10.1. The company should disclose information on:

+ The financial and operating results of the company;

-« Company objectives;

« Persons holding by the right of ownership or in control of
a block of shares in the company;

« Members of the company’s supervisory and management
bodies, chief executive officer of the company and their
remuneration;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

« Transactions between the company and connected persons,
as weil as transactions concluded outside the course of the
company’s regular operations;

o Material issues
stakeholders;

» Governance structures and strategy.

regarding employees and  other

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommendation,
while the companies are encouraged not to limit themselves
to disclosure of the information speeified in this list.

10.2. It is recommended that consolidated results of the
whole group to which the company belongs should be
disclosed when information specified in item 1 of
Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on the professional
background, qualifications of the members of supervisory
and management bodies, chief executive officer of the
company should be disclosed as welf as potential conflicts
of interest that may have an effect on their decisions when
information specified in item 4 of Recommendation 10.1
about the members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies is under disclosure. It is also
recommended that Information about the amount of
remuneration received from the company and other income
should be disclosed with regard to members of the
company’s supervisory and management bodies and chief
executive officer as per Principle VI

10.4. It is recommended that information about the links
between the company and its stakeholders, including
employees, crediters, suppliers, local community, as well as
the company’s policy with tegard fo human resources,
employee participation schemes in the company’s share
capital, etc. should be disciesed when information specified
Jin item 7 of Recommendation 16.1 is under disclosure.

No

The Company does not disclose information about the
individual remuneration of the Company's CEO, as
provided under Principle VIII {ie. only data of top
seven officers, including the Company’s CEQ, are
disclosed), nor it discloses the information about the
relations between the Company and the stakeholders,
such as employees, creditors, suppliers, locsl
community, because such disclosure is not required by
the mandatory legal acts.

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such & way that
nefther shareholders nor investors are discriminated with
regard to the manner or scope of access to information.
Information should be disclosed to all simuitaneously, It is
recommended that notices about material events should be
announced before or after a trading session on the Vilnius
Stock Exchange, so that all the company’s shareholders and
investors should have equal access to the information and
make informed investing decisions.

Yes

The Company implements this recommendation, ie.
discloses the information in the Lithuanian and English
languages simultaneously, to the possible extent,
through the information disclosure system of the
Vilning  Stock Exchange. The Stock Exchange
publishes the information received on i#ts website and in
its wade system, ensuring, hence, simultaneous
announcement of information to all. Additionally, the
Company puts efforts to annovnce Information before
and after the trading session of the Vilnius Stock
Exchange and to present such information to all
markets where the Company’s securities are traded;
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however, announcement of notices about material
events before and after the trading session of the
Vilnius Stock Exchange is not ensured at all times, and
also considering explanations presented with regard to
implementation  of recommendation 101
Principle X. The Company’s notices about the matarial
events are also disclosed on the Company’s website.
The Company does not disclose informetion that may
affect the price of its securities issued in the
interviews or otherwise until such
information is publicly announced through the stock
exchange information system.

under

coprmentaries,

10.6. Channels for disseminating information should provide
for fair, timely and cost-efficient access to relevant
information by users. It is recommended that information
technologies should be employed for wider dissemination of
Information, for instance, by placing the information on the
company’s website. It is recommended that information
should be published and placed on the company’s website not
only in Lithuanian, but also in English, and, whenever
possible and necessary, in other languages as well.

Yes

In order to ensure fair, timely and cost-efficient access
to information, the Company discloses it on the
Company’s website in the Lithuanian. Epnglish and
Russian languages.

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s annual reports
and other periodical accounts prepared by the company
should be placed on the company’s website, It is
recommended that the company should announce information
about material events and changes I the price of the
company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the company’s
website too. :

The Company impiements this recornmendation.

Principle X1: The selection of the company’s auditor

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of auditor’s conclusion and

opinion.

11.1. An annual andit of the company’s financial statements
and report should be conducted by an independent firm of
auditors in order to provide an external and objective opinion
on the company’s financial statements.

An independent audit company audits the Company’s |

interim financial statements, annual financial statements
and annual report.

11.2. ¥t is recommended that the company’s supervisory
board and, where it i3 not set up, the company’s board should
propose a candidate firm of auditors to the general
shareholders’ meeting. '

No

A candidate of the audit company has always been
proposed to the General Meeting of Sharehoiders by the
decision of the Board.

11.3. It is recommended that the company should disclose to
its shareholders the level of fees paid to the firm of auditors
for nop-audit services rendered to the company. This
information should be also known to the company’s
supervisory board and, where it is not formed, the company’s
board upon their consideration which firm of auditors to
propose for the general shareholders’ meeting.

No

The company has not disclosed to the sharcholders |

information that the Company’s audit company
provided remmunerated non-audit services to the
Company in 2006 in association with development of
the Company Group’s accounting policy because there
is no procedure established for such disclosure unless
the General Meeting of Shareholders is convened.
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